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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacture in China.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturer of high-
end knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the largest
exporter of knitwear and the largest PRC garment supplier to Japan
according to the 2006 to 2009 reports on the development of
China’s garment industry and the 2006 to 2009 annual reports on
China’s international trade in textiles and clothing.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and strategically set up garment
factories in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia, the Group
also established sales offices or branch offices in Shanghai, Hong
Kong and Osaka. The Group currently had over 48,000 employees
and the area of the factories spans across 1,370,000 sg.m., which
can produce various knitwear of over 170 million pieces per year.

The Group focus on producing sport wear and causal wear with
the major international renowned clients including UNIQLO, ADIDAS
NIKE, and PUMA. The market is also extended from Japan to Asia
Pacific, Europe and the US market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included as the Constituent Stock of Hang Seng Composite Index,
Hang Seng Composite Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang
Seng Composite SmallCap Index, effective from 8 March 2010.

During the year 2010, Shenzhou International has been named in
the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou Zhoukan and has
been recognised by Forbes Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion”
Companies.
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Financial Highlights

BEAFETEMKEH

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+-A=t-HALEE/W+t=-A=t-AH

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-ZF —ETNF —ETNF S 3 —ETRE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
TEHRKEN Key Financial Information
(AEB®FR) (RMB’000)
HES Sales 6,719,172 6,093,485 4,822,596 3,655,613 2,979,530
BR BT 1550 A1 AL Profit before income tax 1,624,597 1,473,553 757,420 401,736 409,247
FE R Profit for the year 1,272,645 1,263,114 700,452 408,088 390,246
ARBIREREA Profit attributable to equity
FE1GF) holders of the Company 1,271,654 1,252,030 699,380 406,882 389,031
FRBEE Non-current assets 3,585,484 3,038,729 2,619,575 2,203,185 1,821,114
TEAEE Current assets 3,839,971 2,388,500 1,701,676 1,700,735 972,592
mBBE Current liabilities 2,517,503 1,454,532 1,373,905 1,331,079 719,390
MBEEFE Net current assets 1,322,468 933,968 327,771 369,656 253,202
BEE Total assets 7,425,455 5,427,229 4,321,251 3,903,920 2,793,706
BEERTDAR Total assets less current liabilities 4,907,952 3,972,697 2,947,346 2,572,841 2,074,316
BRE Total equity 4,813,271 3,895,696 2,872,973 2,480,632 2,074,316
BeRkREEED Cash and cash equivalents 519,017 377,717 238,141 233,384 273,994
TERHILE Key Financial ratios
EFIE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 29.9 31.7 23.8 223 21.4
BB E (%) Net profit margin (%) 18.9 20.6 14.5 1.1 13.1
EREEL R (%) Net gearing ratio (%) 18.9 8.2 20.6 22.8 2.1
BNt & Current ratio 1.5 1.6 1.2 1.3 1.4
MR 2 BEH (B) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 4 33 31 26 24
FEZEEH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 116 84 71 72 62
T Notes:
1. BABELEZAERAEENBRIRE KA 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (less

szt

cash and cash equivalents) and total equity.
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Financial Highlights

RERENIWMHNEESEE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BEt-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
—Z-%% ZZTNEF ZZTN\F ZTTLF ZZTRE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ARETR % ARBTT % ARETR % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

REMR By products

BERE Sports wear 3,373,294 50.2 2,578,060 42.3 2,042,315 42.3 1,165,198 31.9 463,607 15.6
UNGEES Casual wear 2,365,684 35.2 2,835,415 46.5 2,398,304 49.7 2,248,981 61.5 2,374,491 79.7
WK k& Lingerie 740,586 11.0 524,141 8.6 248,929 5.2 147,920 4.0 35,577 1.2

Hin st o Other knitting
products 239,608 3.6 155,869 2.6 133,048 2.8 93,514 2.6 105,855 3.5
HERBE Total sales 6,719,172  100.0 6,093,485  100.0 4,822,596  100.0 3,665,613  100.0 2,979,630  100.0

—E-EF —EZhE —EENF
2010 2009 2008

11.0% 3.6% 8.6% 2.6% 5.2% 2.8%

50.2% 35.2% 42.3% 46.5% 42.3% 49.7%

—BTLF “EEAF
2007 2006

4.0% 2.6% 1.2% 3.5%

B &S

Casual wear

BEERE
Sports wear

WK RE
Lingerie

H At £ 48 o
Other knitting products

61.5% 79.7%
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BmsomomNESEE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION

BEt-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
—Z-%% ZZTNEF ZZTN\F ZTTLF ZZTRE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ARETR % ARBTT % ARETR % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

®Bmi5 By regions
e International sales
AR Japan 2,772,854 41.3 3,201,526 52.5 2,437,304 50.5 2,178,725 59.6 2,250,287 75.5
UM Europe 1,392,450 20.7 929,192 156.3 751,442 15.6 515,602 14.1 339,337 11.4
e us 439,591 6.5 339,692 5.6 261,079 5.4 298,830 8.2 105,627 3.6
HiER Other countries 760,347 11.3 531,090 8.7 455,497 9.5 268,112 7.3 105,121 3.5
BNHE Domestic sales 1,353,930 20.2 1,091,985 17.9 917,274 19.0 394,344 10.8 179,158 6.0
HERME Total sales 6,719,172  100.0 6,093,485  100.0 4,822,596  100.0 3,655,613  100.0 2,979,530  100.0
—B-2F —BEAF —EEN\E
2010 2009 2008
20.2% 41.3% 17.9% 19.0%

11.3%

9.5%—\

5.4%

6.5% 16.3% 52.5% 15.6% 50.5%

—BTLF —ERAF
2007 2006

10.8% 3.5% 6.0%

Japan

B

Europe

£

us

H fh B
Other countries
NiHE

Domestic sales

8.2%

14.1% 59.6% 75.5%
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Corporate Information

ot it & B REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited ~ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
P& CHINESE NAME
HMNBEEREBEZERBR QA MBI S EZERB R AR

EEg BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors

ERERE (FE) Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

\mEAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin

B4 Mr. Ma Renhe

Bl e 27 + Ms. Zheng Miaohui

FHITES Non-executive Director

BR BB Mr. Chen Zhongjing

BIUKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
B E Mr. Dai Xiangbo

BEMELTE Mr. Su Shounan

REELEE Mr. Zong Pingsheng

NAME COMPANY SECRETARY

ReR 128 L 5 A Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

REAXK AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
P yE 4+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui

PR 128 B8 5 A Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji
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EXEEeTRZET
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BEEAEE
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FMEES
BEMEE (£E)
AR EE

REZBEE
BRAMEE (£E)
BARELE

AL R

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BRBEXMI
&t LB
RS
185 15

27182708 F

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (Chairman)

Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Ma Renhe (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Su Shounan

Nomination Committee

Mr. Huang Guanlin (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Zong Pingsheng

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2708, 27th Floor
Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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oAl AUDITORS

LK EETEM BT A Ernst & Young

HEEF AT Certified Public Accountants

EEERE LEGAL ADVISER

KRB RSB Troutman Sanders Solicitors and International Lawyers

1SR X E2ANTT Rowdget W. Young & Company

BRaBFEELEAR PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484, HSBC House P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road 68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106 Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106

ROBFECZEEEIE HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

BEEPREBSHELERAF Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BREF Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

2R KNBR1835% Hopewell Centre

AR 183 Queen’s Road East

1711712-1716%F Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FEAERRT
RERITRP AR AR
RERTT (BB)ERAR
RBIRTTEM BR AR
BRRITRODBRA A
REZRRITROD AR AR
RERITERODAR A
REIXKIRITIRD AR AR
RERERITARAA
BARITARAR
FETHRITROAR AR
FETERT (ZEMN BRAF
EEERERROTBMNDAERAA
EITIRTT (BE)BRAF
ERELBEYRITARAA

REEREEBERER

iPREEE N

NCIE R

www.shenzhouintl.com

R 42 4 5%

2313

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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Chairman’s Statement
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To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to announce the
annual results of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) in 2010 for
all shareholders to review.

2010 has been the best year since the outbreak of the financial crisis
for the export of the Chinese garment industry. However, the year
also exhibited the greatest cost pressure across the industry as raw
material costs, in particular the cotton prices, surged significantly
during the year while other factors such as labor costs, energy
prices and exchange rates of Renminbi also posed enormous threat
on the profitability across the industry. Furthermore, the production
of the Group’s factories in Ningbo Economic and Technical
Development Zone was suspended for 8 days in August 2010 due
to the implementation of an energy-saving and emission-reduction
project. Notwithstanding all kinds of difficulties, the Group was able
to maintain an increase in sales revenue and stable profit margin.
In addition, the Group achieved satisfactory results in respect of
expansion in the domestic market and optimization of the product
mix. Such developments have laid a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable and healthy growth in the future. Therefore, | would
like to express my thanks for the enormous efforts made by the
management staff at all levels and all employees and hope that all
employees will strive harder together with dogged determination
for a brighter future for the Group. | also wish that investors will
be impressed by the achievements made by the Group despite
all adversities and continue to support the Group’s development
strategies.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, the financial position and
performance of the Group was sound. Annual sales amounted to
approximately RMB6,719,172,000, representing an increase of
10.3% as compared to 2009. Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 has risen by
1.6% to RMB1,271,654,000 from RMB1,252,030,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009. Earnings per share reached RMB1.02.

In light of the satisfactory business performance and sound financial
position of the Group, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board” or the “Directors”) recommended the distribution of a final
dividend of HK$0.36 (equivalent to approximately RMBQ0.31) per
share.

Export of the textile and garment industry bounced back noticeably
in 2010. According to China Customs Statistics, the export revenue
of the Chinese textile and garment industry (including textile yarn,
fabrics, finished products, apparel and apparel accessories, the
same below) was US$206.53 billion in 2010, representing a rise of
23.6% as compared to the previous year. Out of the total export
value, the export of textile products amounted to US$77.05 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 28.4%, and the export value
of garments amounted to US$129.48 billion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 20.9%. Nonetheless, in view of the fluctuation in
the exchange rates of Renminbi against US dollars, as well as the
rises in raw material and labor costs, sales prices were severely
affected and we are not that optimistic about the actual growth in
export. In the domestic market, under the guidance of the national
policy implemented by the Chinese government to promote domestic
consumption, and benefiting from an increase in the residents’
income, the garment and textile industry maintained a relatively fast
development. According to the information released by the National
Statistics Bureau of China, in terms of the retail sales of goods
among the “over-the-threshold” enterprises, there was an increase of
25.8% in garments during the year. However, as domestic garment
retail brands have developed rapidly in recent years, the competition
in the domestic garment retail market has intensified. Under the
Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the Chinese government has made the
security of its people’s livelihood the paramount issue. We believe
that the improvement in the living standard of the Chinese residents
will further stimulate domestic consumption and boost the domestic
market demand for quality garment products.

MBI R S B A R A R) - 2010 F 3
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To alleviate the adverse impact of various operating difficulties such
as rising costs and labor shortage, the Group has taken a number
of precautionary measures, such as appropriately stockpiling
raw materials before prices surged, acquiring a right from the
government of Beilun District, Ningbo City to use water from a local
reservoir for 20 years and unremittingly improving the working and
living environments of the staff. Meanwhile, the Group has also laid
a solid foundation for its long-term development through adjusting
its product structure, introduction of new and premium domestic
customers and persistently optimizing the layout of production
bases. The Group believes that challenges to the industry bring
development opportunities and will strive to reinforce its leading
position among its peers so as to secure its position to take
advantage of industry consolidation.

Although the challenges posed to the Group by soaring costs will
persist in 2011, | remain optimistic about the future prospect of the
Group’s business as the demand for sportswear will continue to
surge, the design skill of the Group is improving and a retail sales
development team designated for the domestic market will come

into play soon.

In the future development, the Group will attach great importance
to its competitiveness against its peers. As such, the Group
will increase its input into research and development to attract
candidates of high caliber and to enhance its product development
capability; actively expand in the domestic market so as to mitigate
the impact of exchange rate fluctuation on its performance and the
uncertainties in export sales brought by changes in trade policies;
continue to optimize the layout of its production bases to capitalize
on the resources in different regions; strengthen its lean production
management for a better cost control; and upgrade its business from

a primitive manufacturer to a market-oriented enterprise.

During the year, the Board worked closely with various professional
committees on the Group’s overall strategies and targets. We have
achieved significant results with our efforts. Every staff member of
the Company endeavors to pursue excellent corporate governance
and attain fairness and justification in our decision-making process,
ensure and maintain high transparency in our governance, and try
all our best to provide open communication channels for all of our
shareholders and investors.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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I would like to thank the Directors for their hard work during the year,
as well as the management and all staff members for their utmost
dedication to their job, for it is their diligent work that contributes to
the realization of the established goals of the Group. Last but not
least, | would like to express my gratitude to all of our shareholders,
suppliers and customers for their unwavering trust in and support to
the Company which lead to a brighter future for the Group.

| strongly believe that the value of an enterprise comes from its
contribution to the society. The Group will continue to persist
in offering quality products to the consumers, providing best
services to the customers and creating satisfactory returns to the
shareholders with a view to reinforcing our leading position in the
industry.

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong
Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Propelled by increased demand in the international market, the
export of the textile and garment industry in China bounced back
in 2010. The utilization rate of most enterprises has shown signs
of significant improvement and fixed asset investment has been
hastened. However, the operation of the industry was still under
immense pressure notwithstanding the rising external demand.
The pressure on the lower-stream garment manufacturers was
particularly grave because of the following factors: the unremitting
price surge and production cost hikes in terms of raw materials
(mainly cotton), energy and staff wages; and a rising operating
cost brought by the continual increase in the deposit-reserve ratio
and lending rates among banks as well as the further appreciation
of Renminbi against US dollars. For the meantime prior to any
stabilization in prices, the challenges faced by the industry with
respect to soaring costs will prevail. Furthermore, the volatile
operating environment and rising market requirement for products
have accelerated the consolidation of the industry as structural
adjustments and business upgrading have been more important to
garment manufacturing companies than ever.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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According to China Customs Statistics, the total export value of the
Chinese textile and garment industry (including textile yarns, fabrics,
finished products, apparel and apparel accessories, the same
below) was US$206.53 billion in 2010, representing an increase of
23.6% as compared to the previous year. Out of the total export
value, the export of textile products amounted to US$77.05 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 28.4%, and the garment
export value rose by 20.9% to US$129.48 billion on a year-on-year
basis. In 2010, the European Union, the US and Japan remained
the biggest export markets for China of its textile and garments,
aggregately comprising 48.8% of the total export value of textile and
garments during the year. In particular, the export to the European
Union amounted to US$44.66 billion, representing an increase of
23.7%. The export to the US amounted to US$33.73 billion with
a growth rate of 27.7%. The export to Japan increased by 5.2%
to US$22.45 billion. Furthermore, the export to Hong Kong rose
by 7.1% to US$14.94 billion. The export to Southeast Asia rose
by 35.7% to US$14.81 billion. Based on the analysis of the major
markets, the exports to the European Union and the US exhibited
higher increase with rates of over 20%. On the other hand, the
growth of the Japanese market, which was less affected by the
financial crisis, was relatively moderate. In respect of export product
structure, the growth in textile export clearly outpaced the growth in
garment export.
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The coastal provinces remained as the major origins of the Chinese
textile and garment export. In particular, the export value from the
top five provinces accounted for 75.6% of the total export of China
with an export growth rate close to the average level across the
country. The export of Zhejiang Province amounted to US$49.77
billion, rose by 25.2% as compared to the previous year and ranked
first in China. Guangdong Province ranking next had its export
amounting to US$37.69 billion and representing an increase of
21.6% as compared to the previous year. The exports amounting to
US$33.59 billion, US$17.85 billion and US$17.32 billion respectively
from Jiangsu Province, Shanghai City and Shandong Province
reflected respective increases of 25.7%, 16.7% and 22.0% as
compared to the previous year.

According to the statistical information released by the General
Administration of Customs of China, the total import and export
value of China’s foreign trade amounted to US$2,972.76 billion,
up 34.7% from 2009. Among which the export and import values
were US$1,577.93 billion and US$1,394.83 billion, respectively, and
increased by 31.3% and 38.7%, respectively, as compared to the
previous year. As a result, a trade surplus of US$183.10 billion was
recorded. Foreign trade of China achieved rapid growth during the
year. In particular, it is expected that the swift increase in import of
China will contribute to the reduction in trade surplus and then to a
better trade relation with other countries.

In 2010, the Chinese government carried on its policy to expand
domestic consumption and this has resulted in a growth in the
total social consumer product retail value for the year of 18.3% to
RMB15,699.80 billion from last year. According to the information
released by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the sales of
garments in the domestic market upheld a rapid growth. In terms of
the retail sales of goods among the “over-the-threshold” enterprises,
there was an increase of 25.8% in garments during the year. Under
the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the government has made the security
of its people’s livelihood the paramount issue. We believe that the
improvement in living standard of the Chinese residents will stimulate
domestic consumption and thus boost the domestic market demand
for quality garment products.
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As at 31 December 2010, there was an accumulated appreciation
of approximately 25.0% in the exchange rate of Renminbi against
US dollars in comparison to the rate of US$1 to RMB8.2765 prior
to the exchange rate reform since 21 July 2005. During the year,
Renminbi rose by 3.1% against US dollars. Subsequent to the
financial crisis, China was among the first few economies to bounce
back with a rapid increase in foreign trade volume. However, to
contain the persistent rise in consumer prices in the country, the
Chinese government has raised deposit and lending rates for three
straight times. Due to the enlargement of interest rate gap between
Renminbi and US dollars, the pressure for appreciation of Renminbi
has become greater.

After the influence of the financial crisis on market demand has
weathered, the labor shortage in the coastal regions of China
reemerged and labor costs surged significantly during the year.
Meanwhile, the price hikes and economic development in China has
exerted upward pressure on labor wages, which has become the
chief cost burden for the Chinese textile and garment industry on
its road of development. Although the economic aggregate of China
is ahead of many countries, the per capita figure is still low. This
represents a relative competitive edge for the textile and garment
industry in the PRC and, coupled with the enormous demand for
garment products from the approximately 1.3 billion Chinese, will to
a large extent offset the adverse impact of rising labor costs on the
industry.

According to the information of the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, China had a year-on-year decrease of 0.10 million hectares
of land for cotton production to 4.85 million hectares remaining in
2010. The annual cotton output was 5.97 million tonnes, which
was 6.3% less than the previous year and went down for the third
consecutive year. Based on the information of the United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA), the global cotton output for the
year 2010/11 is expected to reach approximately 25.09 million
tonnes, which is approximately 2.98 million tonnes or 13.5% more
than the year of 2009/10. Among the major nations producing
cotton, the US and India will have increases in output of 50% and
12.0%, respectively, while the production in China and Pakistan
will drop. Output from other cotton producers such as Uzbekistan,
Brazil and Australia will increase. The price of cotton surged
significantly in 2010 as the demand for cotton from lower-stream
garment production companies rose amidst decreasing production.
In particular, cotton prices kept breaking records in the second
half of 2010. Area of land of cotton production is expected to
increase as the sharp increase in cotton price will provide farmers
with an incentive to produce cotton. At the same time, the usage
of substitute materials such as chemical fiber is also anticipated
to increase. Thus, there is room for the price of cotton to drop.
However, as the planting and harvest labor costs soar and due to the
simultaneous surge in other agricultural produce prices, it would be
hard for the cotton price to drop back to pre-2010 level.

MBI R S E R A R A R) - 2010 F 3
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

21 DSD———=<



S——>< 22

BIRE R W AT

Management Discussion and Analysis

ZE-TF FRLEERSE TERIMNIER - E
R A #E (B 3E397,983B I AR - b E 3
KT7103% BEERBEERDRR LR =
E—EFEEHL —FTTNF LR T3.3% - F
N-RBEARBITHEBHREME THED
AE T ZTF—-A+tN\HEZZT——
FZAZTHALE ARBTEEENKE
AEREES R KA BBENTRER
SREFHTELDAN20.0% I BEEZ
T——F®-_ANBLL BEE=-XLATHE
EXFER BT PREMYMEFTES LK
mgE ARBITHAUREENRAEEERE
PRAE S ¥ (B B RIE £ - AR IR S AT
BEEMNEEBER RaToENREREN
MH TITEBRRRERENBEE - LKA
FARESBRINEE RETENEES
fBEwE-

—E-RF RETENFTLEITREN
e MA AR AR EREITERRT
B SEREITELANRBENER T
Ao AP EA [ REAH] @ [RER
B e e b E M REEEERENTH
Bt

RMNBEIREEZRBR AR - 2010 F3#H

The Chinese economy achieved relatively satisfactory development
in 2010 with a GDP of RMB39,798.30 billion, up 10.3% from the
previous year. Nonetheless, consumer prices also rose quickly at an
average rate of 3.3% in 2010 as compared to 2009. During the year,
the People’s Bank of China had made significant adjustment to its
monetary policy. It has raised deposit-reserve ratio for 9 times in a
row from 18 January 2010 to 25 March 2011, resulting in the record
high deposit-reserve ratio for large financial institutions of 20.0%. In
addition, as at 9 February 2011, it has lifted the deposit interest rate
for three straight times. The consumer prices in China still maintain
an increase momentum and the People’s Bank may further utilize
monetary measures to cope with the surge in consumer prices. The
rise in interest rates and persistent tightening monetary policy has
increased the financing costs of enterprises and suppressed the
motivation of the industry to expand investment. Pushed by the cost
hikes and capital pressure, the consolidation in the garment industry
will continue.

In 2010, although the demand in the garment industry resumed
quickly, the rocketing cost has posed a new challenge to the textile
and garment industry which urgently needs restructuring and
upgrading so as to transform China from a “major” into a “supreme”
garment producer and to better mitigate the adverse effect of the
change in the operating environment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS
AND STRATEGIES

Business review

During the year, the surge in raw materials, water resources and
energy prices and the rise in labor cost have exerted immense cost
pressure on garment manufacturers. Due to the requirements under
the energy-saving and emission-reduction project carried out by the
government in August 2010, the production in the Group’s plants in
Ningbo has been suspended for 8 days. Even though the operating
environment was severe during the year, the Group has successfully
surmounted all kinds of hurdles and achieved satisfactory results
attributable to its advanced planning and preemptive measures, such
as stockpiling raw materials, acquiring the right to use water from a
local reservoir for 20 years and unremittingly improving the working
and living environment of the staff. In review of the work during the
year, the Group has paid enormous efforts to adjust its product mix,
forage for domestic customers, optimize the layout of production
bases and improve the welfare of its staff. The specific performance
included:

More Reasonable Product mix

The Group has sustained close cooperative relationship with key
sportswear brands and expanded the business volume so that the
Group’s product mix has improved persistently. For the year ended
31 December 2010, the revenue of sportswear increased by 30.8%
as compared to 2009 and accounted for 50.2% of the total revenue,
surpassing the share of casual wear in the total revenue for the first
time. The revenue of underwear maintained rapid growth for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and accounted for 11.0% of the
total revenue, rose by 41.3% as compared to 2009. The continual
improvement in product mix helped the Group to effectively weather
the adverse influence of the increase in production cost and secured
a relatively stable profitability.
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Optimal Enlargement of Domestic Customer Base

The Group considers the Mainland China market as one with the
highest potential. This is not only due to the aggregate garment
consumption demand from the Chinese population of 1.3 billion, but
also, more importantly, higher expectations for garment that result
from the higher income of the mainland Chinese. It is expected
that while the overall consumption amount of garments rises, the
consumption pattern will also change drastically with an accelerated
increase in market demand for quality, stylish and inexpensive
garment products. During the year, the Group has secured some
leading domestic sportswear brands as its new customers. This laid
a better foundation for the Group to enlarge its sales in the domestic
market while helping the Group mitigate the negative influence of the
fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate and changes in trade policies.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the revenue from the
domestic market accounted for 20.2% of the Group’s total revenue

and increased by 24.0% from 2009.

Further Optimization of Production Base Layout

When it continually expands its business scale, the Group pays
careful attention to whether the layout of the production bases is
optimal so as to capitalize on and combine the different strengths
of various regions. Following the establishment of the first garment
factory in Cambodia in 2005, the Group’s new garment factories
in Anging City, Anhui Province and Quzhou City in west Zhejiang
Province have commenced production in the first and third quarter of
2009, respectively. During the year, the headcounts of the garment
factories outside Ningbo City have been increased and the efficiency
of the staff has been enhanced as the management teams matured.
The Group has learned valuable lessons on how to set up additional
factories in other places from the successful operation of the
Group’s new factories outside Ningbo. The new dyeing and finishing
factory of the Group in Ningbo Economic and Technical Development
Zone has also been launched smoothly during the year, which has
enhanced the fabric production capacity of the Group. The facilities
in this new fabric factory are more advanced and consume less
water and energy. The optimization of the layout of production bases
has paved the way for the long-term development of the Group.
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Further Improvement in Staff Welfare

In the face of rising labor costs, the Group has reduced its reliance
on manual labor for production by enhancing staff efficiency
through lean production management and large-scale automation.
On the other hand, it has also further improved the working and
living environment of its staff during the year. It has renovated and
enlarged most of the staff quarters, shower rooms and canteens,
and added other new and convenience facilities. The Group has
arranged coaches for its non-local staff to return to their home
towns during Chinese New Year and back to their workplaces after
the festival at the expense of the Group. The Group’s care for its
staff has satisfactorily reduced its staff turnover and enhanced the
outcome of its lean production measures.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue amounted to RMB6,719,172,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010, representing an increase of RMB625,687,000 or
10.3% from RMBG6,093,485,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009. Factors affecting the growth were: (1) the satisfactory sales
growth of sportswear and lingerie; (2) the drop in sales of casual
wear which are mainly targeted at the Japanese market; and (3) the
impact on the Group’s output as production of the Group’s plants in
Ningbo Economic and Technical Development Zone was interrupted
for 8 days in August 2010 in compliance with the “energy-saving and
emission-reduction” arrangement of the government.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2010 and 2009 by
product categories is as follows:

BLE+-A=t—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-FF ZETNF &
2010 2009 Change

AR TR ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
RE M By product

BEERE Sportswear 3,373,294 50.2 2,578,060 42.3 795,234 30.8
NEEES Casual wear 2,365,684 35.2 2,835,415 46.5 (469,731)  (16.6)
WK ERE Lingerie 740,586 11.0 524,141 8.6 216,445 41.3
H it Other knitting products 239,608 3.6 155,869 2.6 83,739 53.7
SHE @A Total revenue 6,719,172  100.0 6,093,485  100.0 625,687 10.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue of sportswear
amounted to RMBS3,373,294,000, representing an increase of
RMB795,234,000 or 30.8% from RMB2,578,060,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009. Sportswear exceeded casual wear in
terms of percentage of total revenue for the first time. The Group
has endeavored to develop a high-end product portfolio and has
established solid and long-standing cooperation with internationally
renowned sportswear clients. It also continued to expand the
business cooperation with sports brands in the mainland market with
an aim to reduce the impacts of fluctuations in exchange rates and
changes in trade policies on the Group’s export business.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue of casual wear
amounted to RMB2,365,684,000, representing a decrease of
RMB469,731,000 or 16.6% from RMB2,835,415,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009. The decrease was mainly due to the
facts that: (1) the Group’s Japanese clients were affected by the
drop in retail volume in the garment market of Japan; and (2) the
Group continued to adjust its product mix and client structure in
response to the pressure arising from increasing costs, hence the
sales volume of some of our clients’ products with lower profit
margin decreased.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue of lingerie
amounted to RMB740,586,000, representing an increase of
RMB216,445,000 or 41.3% from RMB524,141,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2009. The rapid growth in lingerie products has
optimized the product mix of the Group.
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The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2010 and 2009 by
market regions is as follows:

BLE+-A=+t—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—E-ZF —EENF &
2010 2009 Change
ARET T AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
M5 By region
SN Japan 2,772,854 41.3 3,201,526 52.5 (428,672) (13.4)
B Europe 1,392,450 20.7 929,192 15.3 463,258 49.9
x The US 439,591 6.5 339,692 5.6 99,899 29.4
EMER Others 760,347 11.3 531,090 8.7 229,257 43.2
BB SH & /N5t Sub-total for
international sales 5,365,242 79.8 5,001,500 82.1 363,742 7.3
WiH & Domestic sales 1,353,930 20.2 1,091,985 17.9 261,945 24.0
fHE @aT Total sales 6,719,172 100.0 6,093,485 100.0 625,687 10.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, the revenue of the Group
derived from Japan amounted to RMB2,772,854,000, representing
a decrease of RMB428,672,000 or 13.4% from RMB3,201,526,000
for the year ended 31 December 2009. The decrease in sales to
the Japanese market was mainly due to the drop in demand for
garments in Japan which adversely affected the Group’s clients in
Japan, as well as the adjustment to the Group’s product structure.
The Japanese market has always been the most significant single
market of the Group, and the Group will continue its efforts in
expanding sales in such market while adjusting the product
structure.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the revenue derived
from the European market amounted to RMB1,392,450,000,
representing a growth of RMB463,258,000 or 49.9% as compared
to RMB929,192,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009, mainly
due to the notable increase in sales of the Group’s sportswear in the
European market.
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Considerable growth in sales was also recorded in the US and other
markets including Hong Kong, Korea and Australia. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, revenues derived from the US and other
foreign markets increased by 29.4% and 43.2%, respectively, as
compared to the previous year.

The Group’s sales in the domestic market also achieved a
satisfactory growth. In addition to the existing clients, the Group
has also developed various renowned garment brands in China
during the year as new clients. For the year ended 31 December
2010, sales of garments in the domestic market amounted to
RMB1,157,227,000, representing an increase of RMB192,563,000
or 20.0% from RMB964,664,000 for the year ended 31 December

2009.

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to approximately RMB4,713,001,000 (2009:
RMB4,159,229,000). The Group’s gross profit margin of sales for
2010 was 29.9%, representing a decrease of approximately 1.8
percentage points from 31.7% for 2009. The Group’s revenue
included a gain of RMB50,920,000 (2009: RMB104,067,000) from
forward currency contract hedges between US dollars and Renminbi.
If such gain from forward currency contract hedges was excluded,
the gross profit margin of the Group’s sales for 2010 was 29.3%
(2009: 30.6%), decreased by 1.3 percentage points as compared to
2009. The slight drop in gross profit margin was mainly due to: (1)
the increasing prices of raw materials, predominantly cotton; (2) the
increase in labor costs; and (3) the further appreciation of Renminbi
against US dollars.

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB4,799,532,000
(2009: RMBS3,882,495,000), of which non-current assets amounted
to RMBS3,585,484,000 (2009: RMBS3,038,729,000), net current
assets amounted to RMB1,322,468,000 (2009: RMB933,968,000),
non-current liabilities amounted to RMB94,681,000 (2009:
RMB77,001,000) and non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB13,739,000 (2009: RMB13,201,000).
attributable to the equity holders of the Company was mainly due to

The increase in equity

the increase in retained earnings.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2010, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB710,914,000, while that for 2009 was approximately
RMB1,147,264,000. Net borrowings (bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2010 amounted
to RMB910,602,000, representing an increase of RMB592,641,000
from RMB317,961,000 as at 31 December 2009.

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2010
amounted to RMB519,017,000 (2009: RMB377,717,000). The
total amount of outstanding borrowings was RMB1,429,619,000
(2009: RMB695,678,000, in which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB619,558,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB76,120,000), in which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB1,349,887,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB79,732,000. Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to RMB4,799,532,000 (2009:
RMB3,882,495,000). The Group was in a solid cash flow position,
with a debt to equity ratio (total outstanding borrowings as a
percentage of equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company) of 29.8% (2009: 17.9%).

As at 31 December 2010, the majority of the Group’s borrowings
were subject to fixed interest rates. The Group did not enter into any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risks.

FINANCE COSTS AND TAX

For the year ended 31 December 2010, finance costs increased
to RMB35,837,000 from RMB25,393,000 for the year ended 31
December 2009, mainly due to the higher interest expenses which
were in line with the increase in the Group’s bank borrowings
during the year. The Group’s US dollars and Renminbi loan interest
rates during the year ranged from 1.15% to 4.82% and 4.37% to
5.28% respectively (2009: 2.26% to 2.95% and 3.65% to 5.31%
respectively).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB351,952,000, a surge of RMB131,513,000
from RMB220,439,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009.
The increase in income tax expense in 2010 was mainly due to the
increase in income tax rates, as well as the additional accrual of
income tax of RMB53,435,000 made by Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Group, pursuant to further interpretation
made by the tax authority in 2010 on the “Two year exempt, three
year 50% reduction” transitional tax concession policy for additional
investment claimed in 2009.

According to the “Notice of the State Council on the Implementation
of the Transitional Preferential Policies of Enterprise Income Tax”,
the applicable tax rate in the coming years for our manufacturing
subsidiaries in Ningbo Economic & Technical Development Zone
will be 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012 and afterwards. After the
implementation of the new tax law, the entitlement of certain
subsidiaries to the preferential tax treatment of the “2-year
exemption and a 50% reduction for 3 years” may remain in force
according to the original tax laws, administrative regulations and
other relevant provisions until the expiry of the tax holiday.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s plants and prepaid land lease
payments with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB168,963,000
(as at 31 December 2009: RMB173,242,000) as at 31 December
2010 were pledged to secure a medium to long-term loan facilities
of US$21,000,000 granted by the Zhejiang branch of Export-
Import Bank of China. As at 31 December 2010, the Group had
outstanding borrowings of US$5,363,000 (as at 31 December 2009:
US$9,181,000) from such bank. In addition, the Group has entered
into a long-term borrowing contract to an extent of RMB90,000,000
with the Beilun sub-branch of Bank of China Limited, for which the
Group’s plants and prepaid land lease payments with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB43,490,000 as at 31 December 2010 were
pledged as security. As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding
borrowings of the Group from such bank were RMB69,500,000.
Certain bank borrowings of the Group and the Company were
guaranteed by various holding companies controlled by the directors
of the Company.
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ACQUISITION

Details are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in US dollars while its
purchases were mainly settled in Renminbi, its costs and operating
profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations. The Group
has adopted a policy to hedge part of its foreign exchange risks in
light of the existing fluctuations of exchange rate between US dollars
and Renminbi. The amounts to be hedged depend on the Group’s
expected revenue, purchases and capital expenditure in US dollars,
as well as the market forecast of fluctuations in the exchange rate of
US dollars against Renminbi.

To avoid reductions in value and volatility of future cash flows
arising from any exchange rate movement between Renminbi and
US dollars, the Group has arranged an appropriate amount of US
dollars borrowings. As at 31 December 2010, out of the total bank
borrowings, US dollars borrowings amounted to RMB525,377,000
(US$79,330,000 based on the original currency) (as at 31 December
2009: RMB322,917,000 (US$47,292,000 based on the original
currency)). In addition, the Group entered into forward contracts
in US dollars in order to hedge certain of its foreign exchange
risk, particularly those related to US dollars. As at 31 December
2010, the aggregate amount of the outstanding US dollars forward
contracts was approximately US$620,000,000 (as at 31 December
2009: approximately US$928,000,000). The Group has also entered
into various non-deliverable US dollars forward currency contracts.
As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding non-deliverable US
dollars forward currency contracts amounted to approximately
US$685,000,000 (as at 31 December 2009: approximately
US$893,500,000).
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed more than
48,390 employees. Total staff costs, including management and
administrative staff, accounted for approximately 20.8% (2009:
19.2%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals.
The Company also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate
personal growth and career development of the employees, such
as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality
standards. All new staff of the Group are required to attend an
introductory course, while there are also various types of training
courses available to all the Group’s employees.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB852,797,000, of which approximately 40% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
56% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and prepaid land lease payments, and the balance was used for the
purchase of other fixed assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group did not have any material event after the reporting period
for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Export of Chinese textile and garment products has begun to pick
up with the impact of the global financial crisis on market demand
on the wane. The growing demand, however, does not ease the
pressure on the operation of industry players. The outlook for
garment manufacturers does not show many positive signs as they
continue to face challenges of rising raw material prices and labor
costs and appreciating Renminbi. We believe that this will speed
up industry integration, and the Group will work towards raising our
leading position in the industry so as to achieve continuous growth
in the face of adversity and lay a solid foundation for its long-term
development.

The garment sector is characterized by huge market demand
and great number of manufacturers. In such a highly-competitive
environment, the crucial factor in market share and profitability lies
on whether a product is in favor with the consumers. The Group
will increase its input into research and development to attract
candidates of high calibre and to enhance its product development
capability with new technology, new materials and new techniques.
It is the objective of the Group to satisfy the ever-increasing demand
of consumers with quality products, as well as to offset the impact of
rising costs on the Group’s profitability.

The Group will expand its sales in the domestic market in order to
alleviate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on its performance
and the uncertainties of export sales arising from changes in trade
policies and to benefit from the rapid-growing garment market in
China. Meanwhile, the growing consumers’ concern about product
quality and environmental protection also present opportunities for
the Group’s development in the domestic market. The Group has
taken steps to set up its own design team and retailing management
and hopes to establish a retail network with an appropriate size for
future business development, with a view to addressing the changing
market needs and offering better products to its clients and the
consumers. The Group has set up the headquarters of retail and
product design in Shanghai during the year.
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The Group will continue to optimize the layout of its production base
and re-allocate various production processes according to the edges
of difference regions. The Chinese government encourages the
relocation of labor-intensive enterprises to the western and central
regions, and also the “outward expansion” by setting up factories
overseas. In light of the rising costs of operation in coastal regions,
the Group will consider setting up new factories in the western
and central regions and foreign countries with regard to its own
development needs.

The Group has been emphasizing on lean production management,
under which optimized cost control is achieved by further
streamlining of business flow and raising the related requirements.
On the other hand, in order to cope with the difficulties in operations,
the Group will also reduce its dependency of production on
labor and enhance resource utilization by introducing automated
equipments.

The lifecycle of an industry hangs on the market demand, while
competitiveness of an enterprise is crucial to its profitability. The
Group will be dedicated to offer consumers with products of better
quality and create higher returns for investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently stable
in cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of Shenzhou International through continuing training
for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covered all the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) since 9 October 2005.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 46 to 53. There is no
other material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.
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The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

Day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board Meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” Section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Annual Report.
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CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for more than
one third of the members of the Board. The Independent Non-
executive Directors are outstanding executives or experts in the
textile industry who bring with them expertise in different areas. They
provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to directors to ensure timely access the relevant information to
discharge their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 5 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2010, with all Directors attended, except for Mr. Chen
Zhongjing, who was absent from 1 meeting as he has another
business engagement.
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Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary to determine
overall strategic directions and objectives and approve interim
and annual results and other significant matters. Since Mr. Chen
Zhongjing needed more time to deal with his private business, he
was redesignated as a non-executive director of the Company on
8 February 2010.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

Board Committees

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has set up three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees have been structured
to include a majority of Independence Non-executive Directors as
members in order to reinforce independence. All of the Committees
are governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005, which comprises
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Renhe, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Dai
Xiangbo, and Mr. Ma Renhe is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. No director will take part in any discussion
on his or her own remuneration. The details of their fees are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload, responsibility, and job

complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance in
2010. At the meetings, it reviews the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005, which comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Guanlin,
Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr. Dai Xiangbo, and Mr. Huang Guanlin is
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board

for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2010. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors and to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case of
an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to re-
election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Director
are appointed for specific terms for not more than three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.283 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005,
which currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dai Xiangbo, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Zong
Pingsheng. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Dai Xiangbo,
whose expertise in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to
provide leadership for the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and

effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings with full attendance for the
year ended 31 December 2010. At the meetings, it reviewed the
2009 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2010 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business

operations and continuing connected transactions.
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TRERSESEN _Z—ZFRNEEMRER Details of Director’'s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
FRE EFCCINEFTETESEHEMFF  Committee Meetings held in 2010 are set out in the following table.

B EEEERNEBEBHFTERIT.5% - The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board Meetings was
97.5%.
HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Exgez ENZEES FMEES REZEE RRBFAE
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

BYFGTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BHREE 5/5 3/3 2/2 1/1 1
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
HEELE 5/5 3/3 2/2 - 1
Mr. Su Shounan
REAERE 5/5 3/3 - 1/1 1
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
FHTES
Non-executive Director
REFLE 4/5 - - - 1
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
HiTES
Executive Directors
BRREE 5/5 - - - 1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
"BEMELE 5/5 - - 1/1 -
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLMESE 5/5 - 2/2 - 1
Mr. Ma Renhe
BypEL+ 5/5 - - - 1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
MsHE FINANCIAL REPORTING

i

EEeHAAGEEARUEEQAALMNAZLR  The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
INCGNTTR= R

AEEE UREESGHMAELM

accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the

WEHRANE ST EAFHEEER - AQFE  accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
EABEMEST BRI BERIRA  FTELIE X by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
EAHERENABE - BEEMHAEMBFSHRE  policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
THAEBNRAERIRASIEETR SRS  reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
RIEEE R - make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group's current

conditions and prospects in the financial report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and

managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee,
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010,

reviewed the internal

which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by Management or
the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the Audit
Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit issues are
tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress
reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior management
periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Committee will,
prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to RMB2,000,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing
Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of
the Securities Trading Code is provided to all Directors on their
appointment. Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days
prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results
and 60 days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s
annual results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed
to trade on the Company’s securities prior to the announcement
of its results (the period during which the directors are prohibited
from dealing in shares) and that all transactions must comply with
the Securities Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed their strictly compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Securities Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information due to their duties within the Company, and
hence, is required to comply with the Securities Trading Code.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

QOur Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, press
releases and presentations material can be retrieved through our
Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure that speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of those website information
listed above are available free of charge upon request to the
Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

Shenzhou International has a policy of open communication and
fair disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or Extraordinary General
Meeting (“EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email
at kenjichan@shenzhougroup.com.hk or directly by questions at
an AGM or EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the
Company Secretary by the same means.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
Governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

AMENDMENTS TO THE LISTING RULES AND
THE CG CODE

In light of the amendments made to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company has
incorporated such amendments in its corporate governance
practices commencing 1 January 2009 and will strive to improve its
corporate governance in the future.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Jianrong (5 &%), aged 46, is an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the overall
business development strategy of the Group and has over 30
years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill ( 43 2 4% 45 & ) and
Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (/M B &1 4% iR 2
8% ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of the
knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. Mr. Ma is a deputy to the
People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province and a standing committee
member of Beilun District of Ningbo. He was named “Charity Model
of Ningbo (ZRHZZ#1)” by Ningbo Charity Association ( 2
EMEZE2)in September 2003. Mr. Ma is the vice chairman of
the China Knitting Industrial Association and was named as “Charity
Model of Zhejiang Province (T A ZEE 118 ) " and “Charity Model
of China (FER2FEZHEER) "

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZRBM) , aged 45, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 23 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (3T T %
KX E) majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been acting as the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong.

Mr. Ma Renhe (FE1=#1), aged 50, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for
administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over
34 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping
Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked
as the manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and
finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. He is
a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father
are brothers).
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Ms. Zheng Miaohui (Ef#$#&) , aged 55, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible for
the financial management of the Group and has over 26 years of
experience in financial management and obtained an accountant
qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988, Ms. Zheng
served as the manager and an assistant to the general manager of
the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has been acting as
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Zhongjing (B £ &), aged 48, is a Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Chen has 29 years of management experience in
administrative affairs. He has obtained a certificate of corporate
human resources manager. He worked for the People’s Government
of Ningbo City, and served as the head of Beilun District Committee
Office of CCP (R idtmEEW AR EE ), secretary of Daqi
Township Committee of CCP (R X RMEZ B EEF), a deputy
head of the Management Committee of Ningbo Beilun Technology
Park (ZRIEmElEREZGRE1E), a deputy co-ordinating
major mechanical and electrical projects under the Ningbo
government (B )FMBRFTEAKEIBH A= =2IE1T) . Currently, Mr.
Chen is a Vice Chairman of the Ningbo Development Zone Holding
Group (EFFAEEIZEREE) and he is a General Manager of the
Ningbo Economic & Technical Development Zone Jinfan Co., Ltd.
(BHAZRESMNKZEABRAF). M. Chen is a Chairman of the
Ningbo Economic & Technical Development Zone Tianren Property
Development Co., Ltd. (ZFFAEEBRAFHMEREBRAF) . Mr.
Chen was a deputy general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd. in September 2003. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a deputy general manager of the Company in October
2005. On 8 February 2010, he was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Dai Xiangbo (&%), aged 48, joined the Group in July
2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. He graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (T 7881 &8 K
) in 1984, majoring in industrial accounting, and completed
his postgraduate study in Zhejiang University G ;2 K 2) in
2002, majoring in economics. Mr. Dai has obtained PRC certified
accountant and senior accountant certificates. He currently serves
as the officer of Zhejing Accounting Service Center GITJ T & € 5F A
B AR L), a professor specially retained by Zhejiang Finance
School at Accounting College (/LB & Zfr & 5128t ) and a fellow
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(hEFMestM3E) . He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of the Haitian International Holdings Ltd. (/X
F R R B BR A A]) (its shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) and the Zhejiang Dilong New Material Co. Ltd. (#;T % #
MR AD B BRE A &) (its shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Mr. Dai served as the division head of the Industrial and
Trade Audit Division of the Audit Bureau in Zhejiang Province (T
EEHBIXELE), the deputy director of the Audit Bureau in
Xianju County, Zhejiang Province CHLAIE 822518 ) |, the deputy
head of the legal system division of Audit Office in Zhejiang Province
CINT A ZEETEEAIREE ) and the deputy secretary of Zhejiang Certified
Public Accountant Association (T & sEft & stAitp e ) .

Mr. Su Shounan (=8 ), aged 72, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group with effect from
30 December 2008. Mr. Su graduated from Textile Part-time College
(#h%5 282K F) . He is a senior economist. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Su has worked as the General Manager of Shanghai Threegun
Group ( /=% £ B4 43 ), Chairman and director of Shanghai
Underwear Group ( E/8 AKX EE ) and Factory Director of the Ninth
Knitting Manufactory ( #4% LB &) . Mr. Su was appointed as the
Honorary President of the Fifth Session of the Executive Council of
Shanghai Underwear Trade Association ( B/ 8 RKTEWMEERE
EBEEeZLE2EK)in November 2006. He was also a member of the
Executive Council of Shanghai Labour Model Association ( % 71 4
FEEHSIEESIEE) from July 1999 to June 2002.

Mr. Zong Pingsheng (R 4% ), aged 76, joined the Group in
July 2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Zong
was employed as a teacher of the textile engineering faculty at
Southern Yangtze University (JLF A2 ) (formerly known as Wuxi
College of Light Industry (£33 T 227 ) and Wuxi University of
Light Industry (#$5% T K2 )). He obtained the qualification of
professor in 1987. Mr. Zong has been awarded a special government
allowance by the State Council in 1992.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Hu Jijun ($2%) , aged 41,
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group

is a deputy general manager of

in Japanese, European and U.S. markets and has 21 years of
sales and marketing experience in the Japanese knitwear market.
After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr. Hu worked at
the production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving as
the deputy manager and an assistant to the general manager,
responsible for export sales. He has been acting as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan ([R&) ,
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such

aged 44, is a deputy general manager of

as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 22 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EEEA#E ) , aged 48, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 23 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( £1%
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Ms. Chen Zhifen (BRZ%¥) , aged 41, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing department,
and has over 21 years of experience in textile industry. After joining
the Group in April 1990, she worked as the section chief, the
manager of its garment manufacturing department, the manager
of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment manufacturing departments,
an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group. During the period
from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms. Chen studied in Naval
University of Engineering (/8% Ti2 X2 ) , majoring in management
engineering.
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Mr. Yan Delin (&%), aged 55,
of the Group, in charge of the daily administration affairs and its

is a deputy general manager

Cambodian operations of the Group and has over 23 years of
experience in textile industry. He has obtained the certificate of
assistant economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as
the head of the equipment division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and
Garment Plant, the head of its office, and a deputy general manager
of joint venture companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (57
WEP R E
a Cambodian company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After

, during which, he served as the general manager of

joining the Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy
head of the office of Ningbo Weaving and has been acting as an
assistant to the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May
2005. He graduated from the Correspondence College at the Party
School of the Central Committee of CCP majoring in economic
management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (JI3%), aged 43, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the departmental manager of No. 1 sales
department of Shenzhou Knitting, and has 16 years of experience in
knitting and weaving industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the faculty of
English at Shanghai University ( F/§AZ2)
international trade. Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai
Dongfang Rimian Company Limited ( L/ 5 B4 ER A RF)) . After
joining the Group in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant

majoring in English for

to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for
the sales to Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (##428), aged 46, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for technology and quantity
affairs, and has over 23 years of experience in textile industry. Prior
to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy factory
manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (Z &4t @ RE M) in
charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager of the
production and operation department and an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving.
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Mr. Hu Yonghai (#7K&), aged 44, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 22 years of experience in textile industry.
He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang Industrial University (3T T ¥ A2 ) with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as the
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs in connection with fabrics and
technology.

Mr. Pan Lianghua (&R %), aged 55, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the knitting and
weaving operations of the Group, and has 36 years of experience
in the textile industry. He graduated from a self-study course of the
China Central Radio and TV University (FF R B8 A2 ) in 1987,
majoring in production operation management. Mr. Pan has served
as the deputy factory manager of Shanghai Knitting’s 20th Plant ( _E
BEH A — 1) , in charge of the technology department, and the
deputy head of the technology division of 8 =18 & B &+ 4% L.
After joining the Group in January 1999, he served as the deputy
manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving
and was responsible for production and quality control.
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Mr. Ma Bin ( E#2) , aged 39, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the departmental
manager of No. 2 sales department of the Group. He is fully in
charge of the operation and project management and customer
relationship maintenance of the Nike business department. Mr. Ma
has 11 years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the
Group, he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department
of European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the Nike business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 40, is an assistant to the general
manager and the departmental manager of No. 3 sales department
of the Group. He is chiefly responsible for the general management
and system construction of the No. 3 sales department of the Group.
He assists the general manager with other aspects of operations
and has 13 years of experience in the textile industry. In 1994,
Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer Science
and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University. He
obtained a Master of Technology from the National University of
Singapore in 2005 and received an NTU-SJTU Joint Executive MBA
(EMBA) Programme in 2008. Joining the Group in January 2007, Mr.
Song has 10 years of work experience in Singapore. Beginning in
1997, he worked as a senior software development engineer for a
software development firm for a year. In 1998, he joined 7k #E T 27,
ABBR A F] of the textile industry and served as its IT Manager and
Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (22 El) , aged 57, joined the Group in 2011. He is
currently an assistant to the general manager of the Group in charge
of the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 40 years of
experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu has obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the team leader of
the wiring team (£ #&F%) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau ( Z % & %
/&), a manager and the secretary of the party branch of 2§ & &
®{EZ 2N A], the general manager of ZE K& E N F], the chief
of Beilun District Electricity Bureau (3t #t&E H) and the general
manager of Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Wang Cunbo (E#Fi§) ,
Department of the Group and the financial controller of Shenzhou

aged 38, is in charge of the Finance

Knitting. He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (J#
TIIEKRE),

a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with
In the same year,
Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition, he
has obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant engaged in securities and futures-related
business. Prior to joining the Group in May 2004, he was a partner
of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm ( 22 & & @ 7k &=
A esHREFT), deputy general manager of Ningbo Yongde
Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( 225 5k 138 {b 2 & 12 3%
EFEFT) , and has over 6 years of experience in acting as certified
accountant.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BRE ) , aged 40, joined the Group in
September 2008. Now, he is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience
in auditing, financial controlling, company secretary and accounting.
Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and
a Degree in Master of Science in China Business Management.
Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser in
Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on page 69 to 179.

The Directors recommend a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.36
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.31) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2010, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 27 May 2011,
to the shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of
Members of the Company at the close of business on 20 May 2011.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2010.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB7,905,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2010,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands,
amounted to RMB662,069,000, of which RMB381,373,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a prorata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 180.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities shares
during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2010.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
(redesignated to non-executive Director on 8 February 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Zong Pingsheng

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ma Jianrong, Ms. Zheng Miaohui and Mr. Zong
Pingsheng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Su Shounan, Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr.
Dai Xiangbo and as at the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010



EEGRS
Report of the Directors

EEZRBER
EHTERHRAATFTRBALN LA
H=F - BRERBAN AA—FARS—F
BHALORE=AANELBEAA HHL
1 FR 75 15 3% -

BRI FATEFHERRB R REAL
YRH=F -RERFEL BIUFNTES
ABEEAPR=EANELEEmMBA BEF
RAEARF R o

REBRBAK SRTESVERFENEE
BREA AEFSHMEE S A ELAKE
EEMMBRFERERMERTESERNERE
EEEARE THERRBEMBREFELAE
B R R DB R RS ARG RIEEIRIE
A BRRIERET SEEH IR B AFE B 5% ©

EE2HM
AREEH M2 FEHN B REN 8 -

EECENESR

BRIAT [BEER 5 ] A MBI ¥RR M 3136 R
BALRGIMBEEEIN FR BEFED
NS TSSO E2al /NI RN =N A )
BRARMAILMBAEERBEMEBEAL
BT EERAHERERERESR -

EERBERBNER
RBE-2-2F+-A=+-RILEE"
AATEFHER AR AREATHEL
A BB 2 AR B A s -

EENEREEEERE

ARREERAEAEAEEEREFER
N E46H E53H °

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination, at
any time, by either party giving the other party not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and is subject to
termination, at any time, by the Independent Non-executive Director
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Under the service contracts, each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus as the
Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided that
the aggregate amount of the discretionary management bonuses
payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial year of
the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Group after
taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate amount of the
discretionary management bonuses but before non-recurring items
for the relevant financial year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 36 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, none of the directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on page 46 to 53.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RERARNEBRPZHE Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
EERARE BT
=x Bt & SORERER R4 &R RZAH 2 L (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BEREE 1 NEIRER 776,332,500 62.36%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interest 776,332,500 62.36%
BLEMEE 2 NEIRER 111,217,500 8.93%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2010, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.25% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.95% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 5.8% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2010, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 68.08% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 31.92% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui (an executive Director)
and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-executive Director). MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2010, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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RAEARTNEBRDPZHE Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
TES 1 E=mEAA 776,332,500 62.36%
Splendid Steed 1 Beneficial owner 776,332,500 62.36%
S 1 NEIR £ 776,332,500 62.36%
Keep Glory 1 Corporate interests 776,332,500 62.36%
] 2 EnEEA 111,217,500 8.93%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 NGRS 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%
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1. As at 31 December 2010, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 80.25% by Splendid
Steed, 13.95% by BMX and 5.8% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr.
Huang Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing
(father of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is
deemed to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep
Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2010, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which in turn was owned as to 68.08% by MCC and 31.92% by certain
senior management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui (an
executive Director) and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-executive Director).
MCC, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a
cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and short
positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2010 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

HREE s EE2

A 7t (%) B2 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

BAEER,/BFE The largest supplier/customer 11 26
AAREER TEAF Five largest suppliers/customers

combined 33 81
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m °

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions
between certain connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and the Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing for
which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company in the
Prospectus and announcements.

1. Continuing connected transactions
a. Lease of certain production premises and facilities

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”)
entered into a lease agreement on 21 December 2007,
pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties leased to
Shenzhou Knitting the apparel production properties for
a period commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on
31 December 2010, with a right of renewal exercisable
by Shenzhou Knitting for a further term of three years at
or below the prevailing market rate (the “Principal Lease
Agreement”). The Principal Lease Agreement is terminable
by Shenzhou Knitting giving no less than three months’
notice to Shenzhou Properties. The rental so charged by
Shenzhou Properties is determined by reference to the
market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms during the course of ordinary business
in Ningbo, China. Shenzhou Properties, which is owned
as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director,
and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment
Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate
and therefore a connected person by virtue of Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, rentals
paid to Shenzhou Properties by the Group amounted to
RMB7,262,000. On 21 December 2010, the Principal
Lease Agreement has been extended for another 3 years
until 31 December 2013. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 21 December 2010 for details.
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Supply of steam

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Mingyao Environmental
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Mingyao Electric Company”)
entered into a steam supply agreement on 21 December
2007, pursuant to which Mingyao Electric Company
agreed to supply steam to the Group for a period
commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on 31
December 2010 (the “Steam Supply Agreement”). Under
the Steam Supply Agreement, Mingyao Electric Company
has undertaken to maintain sufficient and stable supply of
steam to the Group at all times and has granted priority
to the Group to satisfy its demand for steam from time
to time. As Mingyao Electric Company does not have its
own piping system connected to the Group, the relevant
parties have agreed that Mingyao Electric Company may
first sell its steam to an independent A-share company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share
Company”) which would then re-sell the steam to the
Group. The steam price per ton to be charged by the
A-Share Company to the Group will be at the price
charged by Mingyao Electric Company to the A-Share
Company. Pursuant to the Steam Supply Agreement,
the steam price per ton charged by Mingyao Electric
Company is determined by reference to the prevailing
market price of steam supplied by independent steam
suppliers located in the Ningbo Economic and Technology
Development Zone of China, but in any event, the
steam price per ton to be charged by Mingyao Electric
Company shall not be higher than the prevailing market
price of steam in the development zone. Either party
may terminate the Steam Supply Agreement by giving 30
days’ written notice to the other party. Mingyao Electric
Company is owned as to 48% by Worldon (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Worldon”) and as to 52% by Ningbo Mingyao
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Investment Co., Ltd., a party not connected with any of
the directors, chief executives, substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of their
respective associates. Worldon is, in turn, owned as
to 74% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, as to 13% by Mr. Huang
Guanlin and as to 13% by Mr. Ma Baoxing. Mingyao
Electric Company is a connected person by virtue of Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the steam
expenses paid to Mingyao Electric Company by the
Group amounted to RMB38,625,000. On 29 December
2010, Mingyao Electric Company and Relocation Office
of Beilun in Ningbo (ER M mEBMFERAE
entered into the Decommission, Demolition and Disposal
Agreement, and thus the Steam Supply Agreement was
not renewed upon expiry during the year.

Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Shenzhou Dagang
Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Dagang”) entered into a
processing services agreement (the “Processing Services
Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant to which
Shenzhou Dagang agreed to provide or procure other
companies to provide certain cutting services to the
Group for a period commencing on 1 January 2008 and
expiring on 31 December 2010 on normal commercial
terms which are no less favorable than those available
from independent third parties. Shenzhou Dagang, which
is 80% indirect owned by Worldon and 20% is owned by
Rongrong Industrial, is a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the
processing services fees paid to Shenzhou Dagang by the
Group amounted to RMB9,181,000. Shenzhou Dagang
ceased business since 31 December 2010, hence the
provider of the processing services under the Processing
Services Agreement has been changed to Z2 5 BB tt 3@
#H#EA R AR (Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co.
Ltd.”) effective from 1 January 2011. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 21 December 2010 for
details.

*

for identification purposes only
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Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant
to which Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply
packaging materials to the Group from time to time on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable
than those available from independent third parties.
The Packaging Material Supply Agreement is for a term
commencing on 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.
Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to 87.5% by
Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the brother of Mr. Huang
Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by Mr.
Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by
virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rule. During the
year, the amount paid to Huaxi Packaging Company
by the Group for the purchases of packaging materials
totalled to RMB29,741,000. On 21 December 2010, the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement has been extended
for another 3 years until 31 December 2013. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 21 December
2010 for details.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the aforesaid transactions had been
entered into (1) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (2) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favorable to the Company than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and
(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the
Company have provided a letter, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions (1) have not been approved by
the board of directors of the Company; (2) are not in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (3)
have not been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and (4) have exceeded the caps allowed by the Stock
Exchange.

MBS REERAR 2010 FH A5 —
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chairman

Ma Jianrong

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 69 to 179, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

MBI R S B A R A R) - 2010 F 3
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

28 March 2011

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

BEZZ—ZF+_-_A=1+—BHIEFEE For the Year Ended 31 December 2010

—E-EHF —EENF
2010 2009
B 2 ARE TR AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KA REVENUE 5 6,719,172 6,093,485
$H & B AR Cost of sales (4,713,001) (4,159,229)
E A Gross profit 2,006,171 1,934,256
E AU A R Wz Other income and gains 5 201,207 47,672
SHE R S AR Selling and distribution costs (96,932) (65,033)
THAX Administrative expenses (426,376) (403,893)
HihF X Other expenses (23,636) (14,056)
B & B A Finance costs 7 (35,837) (25,393)
R %4 B F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,624,597 1,473,553
Frie®if X Income tax expense 11 (351,952) (220,439)
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,272,645 1,253,114
AT ALTEEER: Attributable to:
NEEAR A Owners of the parent 12 1,271,654 1,252,030
FEPE I M = Non-controlling interests 991 1,084
1,272,645 1,253,114
BATREBERRE EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
BFEAELEERER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
BN Basic AR¥1.02t ARE1.017T
—FEHHE — For profit for the year RMB1.02 RMB1.01
By Diluted TEA k!
—FEFH — For profit for the year N/A N/A

FREEMNRBURR S Z F BN A B RR WM

AE13HKEE

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

BB R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZZ—ZF+_-_A=1+—BHIEFEE For the Year Ended 31 December 2010

—E-=EF —EENF
2010 2009
B 5 AR TR ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,272,645 1,253,114
Hit 2 EU = OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
WEMmEEH Cash flow hedges:
FEEAYHITA Effective portion of changes in fair
N BEEE value of hedging instruments
BE D arising during the year 25 70,150 29,701
HRGEBmRER Reclassification adjustments for
Wz B DB gains recognised in consolidated
income statement 25 (42,182) (87,833)
27,968 (58,132)
HWEIEINEFS ZE =% Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 1,093 (388)
FEHMZERKE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(BRBiE) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 29,061 (58,520)
FEXHREAHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR 1,301,706 1,194,594
AR AL FEfRfE R Attributable to:
ISINEIE PPN Owners of the parent 1,300,715 1,193,510
JEPZE Il M Non-controlling interests 991 1,084
1,301,706 1,194,594

B R S E AR A R AR - 2010 FH]
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—ET—ZTF+=-_HA=+—H 31 December 2010

—E-EHF —EENF
2010 2009
B 2 ARET AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% BB k& Property, plant and equipment 15 2,991,017 2,708,796
A L EFRIE Prepaid land lease payments 16 478,506 205,821
mEEE Intangible assets 17 115,961 122,238
EIEIBEE Deferred tax assets 27 - 1,874
EMEBEELE Total non-current assets 3,585,484 3,038,729
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
T8 Inventories 19 1,808,784 1,185,157
FE W BR 5K Trade receivables 20 897,211 607,346
FENFRIE EHE R Prepayments, deposits and
E b e W SR IE other receivables 21 382,049 150,162
MEEMT A Derivative financial instruments 25 107,884 30,291
VR EZEB=MEA 2  Bank deposits with initial term of
RITF over three months 125,026 37,827
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 519,017 377,717
mENEELE Total current assets 3,839,971 2,388,500
VI R=Ri CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERBRER R EE Trade and bills payables 23 486,856 386,426
78 Y BR X Advance from customers 53,060 =
H b fEFE R EEHFIA  Other payables and accruals 24 376,638 392,188
ESMT A Derivative financial instruments 25 - 5,584
STRBETREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 1,349,887 619,558
FES B E A TR Amounts due to related parties 36 2,257 2,058
JFE TR SR Tax payable 248,805 48,718
mE B ERE Total current liabilities 2,517,503 1,454,532
BARBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,322,468 933,968
REERRBAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 4,907,952 3,972,697

BB R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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—ET—ZTF+=-_HA=+—H 31 December 2010

—E-EHF —EENF
2010 2009
B 2 ARET AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
ARSI REMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 79,732 76,120
FEEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 14,949 881
EMEBAERE Total non-current liabilities 94,681 77,001
FEE Net assets 4,813,271 3,895,696
E= EQUITY
BATHEEAEIERELZ  Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
% < Share capital 28 129,717 129,717
1 Reserves 29(a) 4,288,442 3,369,100
¥R R HIR B Proposed final dividend 13 381,373 383,678
4,799,532 3,882,495
FEHEH R Non-controlling interests 13,739 13,201
M B E Total equity 4,813,271 3,895,696
BE% EHEM
Ma Jiangrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEE
Chairman Executive Director

——— 72 MBI EEEZERERAF - 2010 F3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—ZF+-H=+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2010

4,288,442,000c (ZEZNLF: ARK
3,369,100,0007T ) i 1= E A @R 46K o

BRAREARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERBH EX RaR#E ik
RiHEE byl 1 I3 E RBRE BARE RERA RERE ait  FENEER ERAE
Employee
Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
ik AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Wtos)  (WE2oa)  (AfsE29al)
(note 25)  (note 29(a)fi)  (note 29(alfi)
At 1 January 2009 762,499 81,682 474172 (19918) - 1,212,642 219593 2,860,387 12,586 2,872,973
Total comprehensive income
for the year - (58,132) - (388) - 1,252,030 - 1,193,510 1,084 1,194,594
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests shareholders - - - - - - - - (469) (469)
Final 2008 dividend declared - - - - - - (219,593 (219,593) - (219,593)
Employee equity benefits - - - - 48,191 - - 48,191 - 48,191
Proposed final 2009 dividend 13 - - - - - (383,678) 383,678 - - -
Transfer from retained profits = = 126,464 = = (126,464) = = = =
RZZEAFTZA=F—H At31 December 2009 762,499 23,550 600,636 (20,306) 48,191 1,054,530 383,678 3,882,495 13,201 3,895,696
BARRAARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EREH Ej BERE Rk
RHEE BAGRE [N E RORRE EAGE RERA RERE fi  FEttEs REAE
Employee
Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
i3 ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETRT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Wios)  (Wskoo)))  (MHER29(a))
(note 25)  (note 29(a)l)  (note 29(alfil)
At 1 January 2010 762499 23,550 600,636 20,306) 48,191 1,954,530 383,678 3,882,49% 13,201 3,895,696
Total comprehensive income
for the year - 27,968 - 1,003 - 1,271,654 - 1,300,715 991 1,301,706
Dividends paid to non-controling
interests shareholders - - - - - - - - (453) (483)
Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - - (383,678) (383,678) - (383,678)
Proposed final 2010 dividend 13 = = = = = (381,373) 381,373 = = =
Transfer from retained profits - - 120,602 - - (120,602) - - - -
RZB-ZF+A=F-B At31 December 2010 762,499 51,518 721,208 (19,213)* 48,191 2,724,09* 381,373 4,799,532 13,739 4,813,211
SEARBUERRAER I EEEBEBARK < These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

RMB4,288,442,000 (2009: RMBS,369,100,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

BB R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

>——"—>< 74

BHE-_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILLFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2010
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
Bt 5 AREBT R ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REEKMIBEELMRE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 5 A1 A1) Profit before tax 1,624,597 1,473,553
T Adjustments for:

B B A Finance costs 7 35,837 25,393

FEWA Interest income 5 (4,190) (3,555)

LEME - BE & Loss on disposal of items of property,

A 2 B8 plant and equipment 6 4,401 1,699

ARE (M) EBE Fair value (gains)/losses, net of

BEMRITETER derivative instruments - transactions
—Tﬁ S¥HER 2 not qualifying as hedges
R 5 D (71,591) 5,339

*”7)% BB KR EITE N Depreciation and impairment of property,

B plant and equipment 6 286,026 235,857

FE T ERIEESE  Amortisation of prepaid land

lease payments 6 8,929 4,006

E b B B Amortisation of other intangible assets 6 6,874 6,749

1E B xR Employee equity benefits - 48,191

1,890,883 1,797,232
FEIE M Increase in inventories (623,627) (452,731)
JiE L AR SR8 0 Increase in trade receivables (285,088) (120,308)
SCENE =R T;z%& Increase in prepayments, deposits and

/H@FEH&Z I8 38 0 other receivables (238,330) (42,942)

JFE T BR /T/\ R =B N Increase in trade and bills payables 100,430 99,457
T8 L AR FR4E 0 Increase in advance received

from customers 53,060 =
H fib B 08 K JEET FXIE  (Decrease)/Increase in other payables and

CRd) ./ K0 accruals (5,325) 75,524
FEATREE AL FIEIE AN Increase in amounts due to related parties 199 690
KEXBSHRS Cash generated from operations 892,202 1,356,922
EATH B Interest paid (35,837) (25,393)
BEREANEM Hong Kong Profit tax paid (7,573) =
ERPBEPEMSH PRC Corporate income tax paid (137,878) (184,265)
BEEEE Net cash flows from operating activities

RenE8FRE 710,914 1,147,264
REXKFMBESELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
2 A S Interest received 5 4,190 3,555
BEME BE K Purchases of items of property,

HREIEE plant and equipment (544,022) (608,835)
HEME  KE K Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

HEBEE 25 ?K plant and equipment 1,473 849
SHFEM LA E R Payments of prepaid land lease payments (16,271) (834)
Wi B AR 7K #E Purchases of water use rights (1,000) =
WEREMmEREE Purchase of other intangible assets (597) (2,319)
W iE — KT8 A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 30 (284,965) (23,980)
PTHESET BRI ER Maturity of derivative financial instruments 25,912 (12,715)
PmFEZEHE =2 Increase of bank deposits with

SR1T 13 SR 0 initial term of over three months (87,199) (7,827)
KREGHMMABEEIME  Net cash flows used in investing activities

FER (902,479) (652,106)

B R S E AR A R AR - 2010 FH]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BHE-_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILLFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2010
—g-%% —TINS
2010 2009
Bt 5 AR® T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BMETHMBEELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
MBRITER New bank loans 1,758,797 1,385,174
ERIRTER Repayment of bank loans (1,043,656) (1,520,338)
m & A E %A AR RS Dividends paid to owners of the parent (383,678) (219,593)
[A) FE 4% il |PEHX$/TEEHH§ & Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders (453) (469)
BMEEEFTS, (FTHA)  Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
REenEFHE financing activities 331,010 (355,226)
RERREZEY NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
3 hnF EE CASH EQUIVALENTS 139,445 139,932
FUReMIEELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 377,717 238,141
EXEH) 2 FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 1,855 (356)
FHRESRRELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 519,017 377,717
ReRESZEEYLEER  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
i CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
& RIRITAERR Cash and bank balances 512,528 326,708
REREREDNR =M Non-pledged time deposits with
BIHA 7 KR FE HI7F 5 original maturity of less than
three months when acquired 6,489 51,009
AR R K& Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
BemERMIZ the statement of financial position and
RekBEeFEY the statement of cash flows 22 519,017 377,717

BMBEREEZERAR AR - 2010 F3)
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Statement of Financial Position

—ET—ZTF+=-_HA=+—H 31 December 2010

—E-BF —EENF
2010 2009
B 2 AR¥E TR AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
KRB AR ZE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 616,293 637,731
BYMBARZERK Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 973,452 970,248
EETIRE E Deferred tax assets 27 - 1,874
IEREEELE Total non-current assets 1,589,745 1,609,853
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JrE U BR X Trade receivables 20 299,149 152,370
H b jE R IB Other receivables 21 749,670 595,350
RekREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 22 99,113 30,105
EEMTEAE Derivative financial instruments 25 40,095 =
MEEEEE Total current assets 1,188,027 777,825
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B EERE Trade and bills payables 23 23,394 4,830
H b B Z0 T8 K JEET FXIE  Other payables and accruals 24 154 2,505
TESRmIA ‘ Derivative financial instruments 25 - 5,584
FFERITEEMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 371,801 156,511
FEAST BT |8 A RIZKIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 18(c) 421,961 286,532
FEB A IR Tax payables 12,219 =
mEBEAE Total current liabilities 829,529 455,962
BRBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 358,498 321,863
HEEBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,948,243 1,931,716
ERBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BRI B E Deferred tax liabilities 27 6,616 =
EmEBAFEEE Total non-current liabilities 6,616 =
FEE Net assets 1,941,627 1,931,716
Rz EQUITY
BEBITIR A Issued capital 28 129,717 129,717
& Reserves 29(b) 1,430,537 1,418,321
¥R R B 8 Proposed final dividends 13 381,373 383,678
= BE Total equity 1,941,627 1,931,716
B = Bk
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEE
Chairman Executive Director
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—REHR
RMBEREEZERER AT ([RAAF])
R_EERENA-_T=PEHRS
SEMK L AEERRER A o 5t
= & i 3iF & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o 2" 2 5] %
ME_ZEZRF T+ A THBERES
BHARSHARARER ([ER])
ke

ARBREKMBAR (HBIAEE])
FERERERFEEHEREER (5
BEK]) AKBEXEMBARZFEB
FHRMIEE18 ©

EEZRA TEBREERAA(—XK
REBELZEHS ((RBRLES])FE
MRZZRE) BARE ZREZERRD
AleHARBERRA (— KN RE L
SEMKILZZ AR BAREZHNE

@/NCI

mREE
HEMBHRERRIDBREELEFIMAE
(IEBEFMAg )Rz BEHMB
SEA(TBEVMHHREER] B
PREEAEMBHREER FEEAE
Al ([FEEEL]) ki) FERQ
REARERBBRAGI ZKEE
KRB -lRITE SR T RIVRAA(ER
BN MR TIIRE L ANE BIE SR
H-BRIBER TAMFHHERE
UARE (TAR%]) 27 BERES
BB ANEABREREA T -

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of
the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

BB R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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BOtEE
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MM B RREARAREZHEERD
HEHAEMER - LERA - SRR
H-MBLARAZEEHREER (XK
BEGESE B)EFAHFARKR X
BEBSHAREZZEHRR LKA
k- FESEEARRBZER X5 &
BARBERSMoI Rz ARERBR R
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EMOBERBESRE BN (AR5 B
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RMNBEREEZRAR AR - 2010 F3#H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2010. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010
Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been
applied on a prospective basis. The following differences,
however, are carried forward in certain instances from the
previous basis of consolidation:

AEBFTEL 2 BEEBIFEHIE
BaE BEEEBRBEIRET
E—FBEEEEBT AR HEFE
2RISR AT ER D
REFARIN R B —FF—H
— B AT Z B 1B 3 0 SR 12 il 1 A
HEBRARBRRZEEHN DR -

RAREZEFIRE  AEERKEE
HERRBZRELZBIEZEE
FELOIAREE - BHAREN =
T-ZEF-A-HZERHEELX
RET -

o Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the
non-controlling interest until the balance was reduced
to nil. Any further excess losses were attributable to the
parent, unless the non-controlling interest had a binding
obligation to cover these. Losses prior to 1 January 2010
were not reallocated between non-controlling interest and
the parent shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of net asset
value at the date control was lost. The carrying amount
of such investment at 1 January 2010 has not been
restated.

22 T HEREHREE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES
AEBRAFE 2 PR E B IR A The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

THEI REFTME BT B ELERA -

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

BB 15 R &5 %R B KRN BB 7 HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
F15% (&1EE]) HEER Financial Reporting Standards
BB SR BB E R HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
EALTACTIN EALA=p T time Adoption of Hong Kong
BB S Financial Reporting Standards
Rl — B KRR & — Additional Exemptions for
Z BEONEA R 2 A& First-time Adopters
&l
BBV EER BB SR HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
F2SRABEI A F2RU R 75 based Payment — Group Cash-
2 — %5 settled Share-based Payment
KB wEE K Transactions
BOZRZXE
ZAERT
BB 1 R 5 2R E L a=nid HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

E35% (&Z1ERT)

BB R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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22 T HEREHRIKE &) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

BEE AR AARE T ER HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
F275% (KLIEET) #x Financial Statements

hk tie

BEEFHERF39

HKAS 39 Amendment

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial

ERIE AR BT A # Instruments: Recognition and
RRFTFE—BE Measurement — Eligible Hedged
1EEHFIE A 2 1& Items
]

B (BBRHBHRE AEBASRHEE HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
“EZEY TEE to Owners
—REE1THR

BB BRELER BB BRELER HKFRS 5 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
FEERIEFTA (& ESRfF AT E included in current Assets Held for Sale
ER=ZZTZENEF FEREEERAR Improvements to and Discontinued Operations
T RAEf 2 & LA &R — 5T HKFRSs issued in — Plan to sell the controlling
BB E BRI 2 2/ ENE 2 A October 2008 interest in a subsidiary
HEAEFT AR HIPEH 17 2

&3]

ZETNFERBHY RZZETNFHA Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of
BWmEEL 2 Bz HETS 2009 HKFRSs issued in May 2009
BigiS 78 B 7% R 5 2E |

ZAEET

BEREEA BEREEINH HK Interpretation 4 Amendment to HK Interpretation

(EHEN E-ETEEEL Amendment 4 Leases — Determination of
MHEZ BIR 2 the Length of Lease Term in
EH) respect of Hong Kong Land

Leases
BEBREEST 8 % F. =Y /| HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

—BAALHEE Statements — Classification by
1 2 5K (R AR (F the Borrower of a Term Loan
A ERE A that Contains a Repayment on
oyl Demand Clause

BT XArE— B (R EMG
WEEAEIR (KER]) BAEGE
AlZE275 (RIERT) - BB G ERIFT
HRERBGHEUE IR ZER (B2
R-ZETNFEEVBHREEN 2K
ERN)REBRERAR (R_FTFTNEF
TZRERT) N RAZE# ] RAEER]
FREV B MEEN L EEZFHRE
EXEAMBEE-

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised), amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKAS 17 included in Improvements to HKFRSs
2009) and HK Interpretation 4 (Revised in December 2009),
the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

MBI S E AR A R AR - 2010 F 3]
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(a)

BBV B REER BN (LB
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A EBE) REEBT BT
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BB ENFENREREE 2
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RAZRERE B SFERFE3
BRAERA e

SERETENGTR 2ZEHRA
ARERZE AFER _T—TF
—A— AR BRI N
B HIMRR R P ZBF R
e

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(@) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in
the accounting for business combinations that affect
the initial measurement of non-controlling interests, the
accounting for transaction costs, the initial recognition
and subsequent measurement of a contingent
consideration and business combinations achieved in
stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill
recognised, the reported results in the period that an
acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary without loss of control
is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore,
such a change will have no impact on goodwill, nor will
it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the revised
standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary. Consequential amendments were made to
various standards, including, but not limited to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes,
HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and HKAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards
are applied prospectively and affect the accounting of
acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with non-
controlling interests after 1 January 2010.

RMNBEREEZRER AR - 2010 F3#H 81 =>——<
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SN BEEHRFE &) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continuead)
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(b)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.
While the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that
only expenditures that result in a recognised asset in
the statement of financial position can be classified
as a cash flow from investing activities.

o HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance
on classifying land as a lease. As a result, leases
of land should be classified as either operating
or finance leases in accordance with the general
guidance in HKAS 17.

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases -
Determination of the Length of Lease Term in
respect of Hong Kong Land Leases is revised
as a consequence of the amendment to HKAS
17 Leases included in Improvements to HKFRSs
2009. Following this amendment, the scope of HK
Interpretation 4 has been expanded to cover all land
leases, including those classified as finance leases.
As a result, this interpretation is applicable to all
leases of property accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 16, HKAS 17 and HKAS 40.

The Group has no land leases in Hong Kong. The
Group has reassessed its leases in Mainland China,
previously classified as operating leases, upon the
adoption of the amendments. The classification of
leases in Mainland China remained as operating
leases.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

HKAS 12 Amendments

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters ?

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures —Transfers of
Financial Assets *

Financial Instruments ©

Related Party Disclosures °

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues '

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement 2

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments 2

Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome

Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets °

RMNBEREEZRER AR - 2010 F3#H
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS
27 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010, whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February

2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.



B s 2% MY 5T
Notes to Financial Statements

—ET—ZTF+=-_HA=+—H 31 December 2010

23 EHEMEEAER2EBEIE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HERA (&)
R-E—TF+—f EHEHHAR
RemEBEEGEENSRE LT
B yRE ([FRAT]) 1SS
SHEBEREMI A BER LT
RRBI AN BB I TS WS R F o8 -
KBS AT RE B SR B395
BE—F B TRAAEHABRZS
BEBIHEBEBOAERE (A
REEEDHE - RREAREEES
EWE HEERAREPMELNEE
ARELHEE VAR M2 E S
(THA2EM]) R 25 BRIV
2ERFFREEZEERB AL
HES R ESPELRBAGHE
2 FHHBAREEHSERNENS
5o R BT E FTRESMALD
REREERAERVBERAD

BN BHRELNEORE EE2EERR
ERE G ERIZE395 - N2 EEUAT
ER G EAERNE A RER
BEZRETHENESBEER A&
EfEHE —T—=F—A - REKXNE
78 B 75 i 5 R 95

ERE G ERF245 (RET)EB R
BEBEA T ZEE - TR B 5 BT
HEAERER BN ZR —BRFE
B KFEEHNAEREATEZERE
TRGAEBDHREBEALRE - X
SERHE T A —BER&
FE Gt ERIE245% (BIERT) - BRIRE
BATHEOLEBRBF IR ELAEE
B °

HRRNEERT LA GRS HRRE
R BN AN S B3R I U
HEERBETEARS KETENT
RAREHBEA LT WEENEATE-

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were
made to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented
in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2013.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of
related parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of
related party disclosure to government-related entities for
transactions with the same government or entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
same government. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative related
party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result in
changes in the accounting policy, the revised standard is
unlikely to have any impact on the related party disclosures as
the Group currently does not have any significant transactions
with government-related entities.

RMBBREEZRER AR - 2010 3k 85 >S————
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out

amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects

to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2011. There are

separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the

adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes in

accounting policies, none of these amendments are expected

to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those

amendments that are expected to have a significant impact on

the Group’s policies are as follows:

(@)

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the
amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do
not apply to contingent consideration that arose from
business combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the scope of the
measurement choices of non-controlling interests at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets to components of non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation. Other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify
the accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
that an analysis of other comprehensive income for
each component of equity can be presented either in
the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the
financial statements.

() HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential amendments
from HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21,
HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier
if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

RMNBEREEZRER AR - 2010 F3#H 87 >———
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)
Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
which is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which
were applied on a prospective basis, the following differences
applied to business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the
purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-
controlling interest was measured at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did
not affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have
been required under the contract.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 (continueqd)

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the
Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was
more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated income statements in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated income

statements in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statements
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for
this purpose are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statements in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation, which
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The principal estimated useful lives of
intangible assets are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Software 3-5 years
Water use right 20 years
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated income statements on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
are charged to the consolidated income statements on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the consideration paid for such right is
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial investments or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parities
and derivative financial instruments.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other income and gains or finance costs
in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair through profit of loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement in other expenses.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in
the income statements. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other expenses.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other operating expenses and removed
from available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to
assess whether the ability and intention to sell them in the
near term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans
and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the
definition of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent
and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is
permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold
until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is to be evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, derivative financial instruments, amounts due
to related parties, and bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; and other option pricing
models.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continueq)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment (except for foreign
currency risk); or

o cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continueq)

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in the income statement in other
expenses.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged
financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a
forecast sale occurs.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement. If the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

MR RERRERAR 2010 FH 4 ()0 —Sa——oe

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010



Y pvEs e

AN

lll

Notes to Financial Statements

— =
— =

2.4

>——< 110

FTESHBREE @)
PTESMIARYRETHE (4)
FHREFHAE

FEERERERTAZITAETARR
SRBAIFERE AREHETERER

i Dy AR SRIEREEH (A
JiE| EEJET%@IEiMLE)
e WMASEBEBERBESHERERSE

METAE - ERKLESHS (BXET
EREHE) BB T @A %
METARBERIERS (KT
BRBBIERBI )  WEIRE
BRZEMER-

e KRERKRBEELRARURIA
ZOUTHET A EoBARMEw Y
EPIEEZ"*E Bl A {EH AT 58

Sic  TTET ARSI RRENE D
K IERENE

7E
T‘b?§W$&T§ﬁ5$TEW%¢ZF
EEFIBR - AR N PR HE
ﬁﬂ%%—t%uu&%ﬁj@m’ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MRER BEIEREEZLIISER
ZEEER A B FERGTEER
B TEAR M E AT 2 A Et A AN E

st
H o
A

RERBEEEY
HEERERERNE HEakREFE
EBYEEFRE S RGBT FA KA
RERSENEEREZeEREBEH
RE FBAREMAXEEZHERT
R-FHE-—RRBAK=ZEAR-

RUBHREME ReRALZEY
BEFARRGTRS ERRENSHE
A=A A KT B RR TR 5T
2L

RMNBERERZRAR AR - 2010 F3#H

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

TFE+-_H=+—H 31 December 2010

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into a current or non-current portion based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a
period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits with initial terms of three months or
less, which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

HMEREEZEARAF -2010 FH {44 e
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statements over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(o) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statements as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”). The functional currency of certain subsidiaries located
outside the Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period, and their income statements are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow, the
cash flows of the Company and certain overseas subsidiaries
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

Acquisition of assets

The Company assesses whether the acquisition of a subsidiary
constitutes a business combination. A business consists
of inputs and processes applied to those inputs that have
the ability to create outputs. If the subsidiary acquired does
not constitute a business, the Company accounts for the
acquisition as an acquisition of assets.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and consequently related depreciation
charges. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to the industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments have
any indication of impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations, while that of prepaid land
lease payments has been determined with reference to
independent valuations. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

HMEREEZREARAF -2010 FH {7 ———
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010



BT aR PY nt

Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2010

3. EESTHERMAES 2)

fhEt 2T RERE (&)

(c) [EYRFIEZ G BE
RE BB ARK R B A K H
i FE YR IR 2 AT W B R ¥ - 3R It D
SREWCRIBRE - B EEFMHHIE
MECBUREY SRR R RBIA R
H A & U 3R I 2 BR BE AT B R MK
@ - Rl & B o BB R AR
FERABMELAE FRAHE
BEREMIAN ZFERHE
F BT o E B 2 R URR K
SBRAREMERFIAZREE
KRR

(d) FEMBEETERFEZIG

AEERBEHFEREANEREREZ
FHE - S TF MO E A B3R FE -
FREEHHABRBCERER
AEEEAER MRS - &
BUMOR B I - 75 5& PR I i A0 4 1
B-rRASRERLGEER
ZEEERETEETNGEFE
ZHEERHENFEHRESRE-

4. BETHER
ROTEEE AEEZEEREDER
B HhRE-—EZHEEDHH
ERHEHBREER - BEENER
BETR EEMEERKLRESA UER
EBRD I MFHERE -

~———— 118 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivable and other receivables. Provisions are applied
to trade and bills receivable and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of trade and bills receivable and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the years in which such
estimate has been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on their products and there is one

reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale

of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating

results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of

making decisions about resources allocation and performance

assessment.
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4. RETWER (&) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

EERR RBOWAKRBEEHZHZ
EZRE OB BETFPMEMLEHES
MB/RERIEESE -

In the opinion of the directors, majority of the revenue was
generated from customers which have world-wide locations,
and therefore, the disclosure of location of customers would
not be meaningful in the consolidated financial statements.

HE -T2 ZTFE+-_A=+—HItF
& AEEIO% Y FERBEELMN P
(ZZETNF:99%) °

99% of the non-current assets of the Group were located in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: 99%).

5. A -HARWE 5.
AT ARER Y S2E N0 HES
MIMBIEEREBSITNBEE Y =3
{H -

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts.

WA Bt ARSI

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

RE
Group
—E-EF —EENF
2010 2009
ARET AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 6,719,172 6,093,485
Hiw A Other income
BT /8 B Government grants* 120,718 44 117
HRITH B WA Bank interest income 4,190 3,555
e WA Rental income 4,404 =
HAh Others 304 _
129,616 47,672
U #5 Gains
N EREFE: Fair value gains, net:
PMETAE-TFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HFER 2R 5 not qualifying as hedges 71,591 =
201,207 47,672

Y BB EEEM T BT T A EE

*

Z B2 o BOFTHEB) L T BT 75 1 I R AERK

IRIF L LA FER -

Government grants mainly represent incentives granted by local

government to the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to the government grants.
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6. FRBiATRIE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBEZBRBATFEE IR (FTA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
AEE
Group
—E-=EF ZZETNF
2010 2009
Bt 5 ARETxR ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BEHEFERA Cost of inventories sold 4,665,853 4,115,212
M BENLREINE Depreciation and impairment of

KomAE property, plant and equipment 15 286,026 235,857

FEf LA E R IEEESY  Amortisation of prepaid land

lease payments 16 8,929 4,006
H A B O Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 6,874 6,749
RIBLELHERN 2% Minimum lease payments under

KM e FKIE: operating leases:

s Building 25,657 20,444
E:HENE & Auditors’ remuneration 2,000 1,900
EERHFZ Employee benefit expense (including

(BiEEEMe directors’ remuneration (Note 8)):

(MI5E8) ) :

TEEH® Wages and salaries 1,324,609 1,119,591

RRETEIE R Pension scheme contributions 10 48,948 36,711

H 1 18 A Other welfares 27,154 13,865

1,400,711 1,170,167
PE 3 = RE 55> Foreign exchange differences, net* 15,424 7,018
WoRFEZRIEEFE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 6,664 1,514
ARE(WE) B Fair value (gains)/losses, net:
B EHR:
PMETE-TFE Derivative instruments —
HHERZZ G transactions not qualifying as
hedges** & (71,591) 5,339
RITH) B WA Bank interest income (4,190) (3,555)
HEWE - HEKLEZME Loss on disposal of items of property,

HEB 2 B8 plant and equipment 4,401 1,699

* HE-_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—RHk= * The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31

FEAFI A= T-ALFELE
FEBFRCH ABAMBRL (K
CEILE

December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

o BEZF-FF+-A=T—BRZ= -
FENFL A=+ —HLEFEZR
REREREEE DB AKREBE
R [ H A A RS | R [ H B2
Ao

The fair value gains and losses, for the years ended 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are included in “Other
income and gains” and “Other expenses”, respectively, on the
face of the consolidated income statement.
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I

7. BERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
BEEKA DT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
rEH
Group
—E-=F —ETAF
2010 2009
ARBTx ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAFANBHERE 2  Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
TREMBEZHE repayable within five years 35,837 25,393
8. EEM < 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BIE EMABREE QARG FE161 5 Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
FIiREE RNEEZEZMESMT Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
—E-ZF —ZZETNF
2010 2009
AR¥BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 180 180
e REEREYM = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,299 2,667
RN EI K Pension scheme contributions 19 23
12 B IR #E 13 A Employee equity benefits* - 36,052
2,318 38,742
2,498 38,922

RHEREBLZRARRDT - 2010 FH {01 ——c
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8. EEM = ») 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
() BTEZ FFTESERBEILEH (a) Executive directors, non-executive director and
TES independent non-executive directors

FE 2MR kst EERE

ne ENRE i B HemE
Salaries,
allowances Pension Employee
and benefits scheme equity Total
Fees in kind contributions benefits* remuneration

ARBTT ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR ARMT:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—T-%F 2010

HITES: Executive directors:

BEREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 739 9 - 748

ERMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 571 5 - 576

BEAEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 450 5 - 455

BYEa+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 450 - - 450

- 2,210 19 - 2,229

FRITES: Non-executive directors:

REsFEE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 65 - - 65

BIFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:

Bamik Mr. Su Shounan 60 8 - - 68

REERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 8 - - 68

HHRRE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 8 - - 68
180 24 - - 204
180 2,299 19 - 2,498

—————— {00 FHEREEZBARAT -2010 £H
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8. EEM = (») 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
() BTEZ FFTESERBEILEH (a) Executive directors, non-executive director and
TES (&) independent non-executive directors (continued)

oe RER RN EERE
1

ne ENHH 3% M Hees
Salaries,
allowances Pension Employee
and benefits scheme equity Total
Fees inkind  contributions benefits*  remuneration

ARBTE ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—ETHE 2009
WIES: Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 750 8 = 758
ERMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 576 5 = 581
BLREAE Mr. Ma Renhe - 436 5) 32,816 33,257
BARELE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 436 5 1,618 2,059
BYErt Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 439 - 1,618 2,057
- 2,637 23 36,052 38,712
BUFNTES: Independent non-executive directors:
HEmEE Mr. Su Shounan 60 10 = = 70
TYEERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 10 = = 70
AEREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 10 - - 70
180 30 - - 210
180 2,667 23 36,052 38,922
* AEEEBEHERASAEERBRHEZ * The Group has recorded non-cash expenses related to certain
ETEERERMNZIERSHAZIIE employee equity benefits provided to senior management in
NRRESEEEZFRENEEK K recognition of their individual contributions to the growth and
FERZER development of the Group over the years.

RHEREBLZRARRDT - 2010 FH {03 —e—ur
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9. IEREFMES 9.
FALERSFMEEREMRE (=%
FNF:—R)EF FEFZHEFHBH
REXHES - FREHK=% (=TT
F OB FETERSHHESE ZMEF

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2009: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2009: four) non-directors, highest paid employees for the

BT year are as follows:

KE

Group
—E-®F —TTAF
2010 2009
ARE TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e R REYNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,984 1,931
IRRET B Pension scheme contributions 24 22
& 8 B 12 I Employee equity benefits - 6,473
2,008 8,426

e FATERNZ FEERSFE

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose

B AE: remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
EBEAH
Number of employees

—E-EF —ETNF
2010 2009
= %1,000,0007% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 -
2,000,000/ 7t 22,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 - 4
3 4
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10. EIREF 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E-ZF —TThF
2010 2009
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bm&x DMk Income statement charge for
— R IRR 5K — Retirement benefit contributions 48,948 36,711

AEBNFEAE 2B EE ZRIKE
NZZIHA BT E B2 RIKEF SR
B ZBRZEFE AEEARERH
CRBEZETADLBEETEBRE L
RAEERRE RENHER LHEH
BT E REMA -

RER B IR AR R B DB A R BIR
BERABRSERHIMATRESRING
MEtEl (TREetE ) 2EES H—
HAAERFBEEE - HRTVIZES
EXFHe s KEABN XM AiRER
BealRAEAXNERIBmRH
BretBetBICEERABYER
EeN BAKENEESRTE A
SEZEEHRRABRE S EELH

AETE2BNESR -

RRBEREIEEIMA L2 EZENB R
M (REE)BR A (THMKH
RERBEHEEHBBIRERES
e mRABNE R (FUEHRF) -

Bk b SCPr a2 RSN - N BB A AR
HitRKEENHEEABE 2 EE-

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the Kingdom
of Cambodia, is required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.
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1. Fr8% e
BE_F-FER_FENFI_7

=+t BLEFEZABRAXEERD

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are:

&

Group
— —EFTNF
2010 2009
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB ZEBNEH Current Hong Kong profits tax 19,792 -

R K RE 2 &% Current Mainland China corporate income tax

s ([REMEHRI)  (‘CIT) 325,746 210,970
EERIA (7E27) Deferred taxation (note 27) 6,414 9,469
351,952 220,439

RERSEFEHRBEEE (—ANANEF
BRI BN ARBCERERS
BESRTRRAR FAEHETEZX
PIE A RBIHARB XL AEFBL
WA R FIBE R - AR AR AR
BEREER MERBBEE 2 A
JERTAN R E16.5% (ZETNF:
16.5% ) Z MR BN BB FFH -

REBR TR SEMKLZ B RRH
BHAREN RRSZEMNBARAR
RERABESYELZENE (RAEM
WMER) TEREBEZESETE
A% Bt kFREBRAA ([XK
T —FRRBRELESEMKLZ
MR BEBN -

REBBRBEE RRAEIEFEMARILZ
2 A B A M R 4 A RI% T X
BT - WK & P B R FE &
RHAMEN - BMNRIBRERAFEL
B FERR LA o

REBEMAZZZEMBARBEMNE
SERAA([ENESZ]) KXKFE(F
B)IREBRAFZELI6.5% (ZTFT N
F:16.5% ) FISMMERRBEBELEY
st FERFR A BB ANFIIE -
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Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law
which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to
be levied on profits or income or gain or appreciation shall
apply to the Company or its operations. As the Company
carries on business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject
to income tax as such subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments Ltd.
(“Top Always”), a subsidiary incorporated in the BVI, is not
subject to tax.

Shenzhou Cambodia, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in the Kingdom of Cambodia, under the Law on Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 9% and is entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first four profit-making years.
Shenzhou Cambodia had no assessable profits during the year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”)
and Top Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to
the profits tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
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11.

Fiig®i (#)
RBEAEMAZZZEMBARRMA
AR (M BER]D)RERBE
BIRFIS TR E22% N B AEE Z &
R EHARIE - R EFEAFEM AR
I S B A E A ] SRR A -
B AAFS VARG

BiEREARKMECZEMREFE (13
ERBRZE]) SR EHEB A AR E
IR EFRBRETTE 2 BRTRA
AIR2E% 2 TAEBT B TSN B
REBRIN ZER R BHEEEERNFEE
BOEREBAMEPEAESR KR
B —FREEAMERFEZER -FIB
RERERER - E—TEE-_FT——

FHARE A -

RENTEEHAEREARE T2
ER-FTNF+-A=+—B1LBEH
FEZREENREZ HRMT

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 22% of the assessable profits
arising in Japan. No provision for Japan income tax has been
made as Shenzhou Japan had no assessable profits arising in
Japan during the year.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the assessable income
of each of the PRC subsidiaries for the period as determined
in accordance with the New CIT Law is subject to a tax rate
of 25%, except for certain of these subsidiaries, which are
exempted from the PRC income tax for two years starting from
their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction in the
applicable tax rate for the next three years. The tax holidays
and concessions will expire between 2010 and 2012.

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 is as
follows:

&
Group
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 54 AT A1 B Profit before tax 1,624,597 1,473,553
LAE FE i E25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
(ZETNF:25%) (2009: 25%)
AAEZHIA 406,149 368,388
5 E A 10 ki 5 BP9 Lower tax rate for specific provinces or
B2 BB = enacted by local authority (120,804) (163,581)
$UARTEARE 2 AR IR AY Adjustments in respect of current tax of
P previous periods 58,937 =
T—H“D S Expenses not deductible for tax 1,706 5,055
MEBBYIRERIBENFE  Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax (477)
¢ RNARTER 2 T IEE S Tax losses not recognised during the year 9,994 10,577
FA R AR A EINF  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
IH G118 deductable tax losses (3,553) =
351,952 220,439

HMERERZEARAF -2010FH {07 — ——
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12. B A REE AEERE 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT
HE_T—ZSF+_HA=1T—HILEFE The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
ZERAHE ANEGEE N EEENE for the year ended 31 December 2010 includes a profit of
AR®143,121,000T (ZZZTNEF: A RMB143,121,000 (2009: RMB415,738,000) which has been
R ¥415,738,0007T) ' B R AR & 8 7% dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
WERANRIE -
13. K& 13. DIVIDENDS
KAFE
Company
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R R EIR B AL E®AY  Proposed final dividend of HK$0.36

0.368TT (ZFEFNF: (2009: HK$0.35) per ordinary share

0.35%7T) 381,373 383,678
AEREZEIKARPREBRAAFRE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
REERRBF R & approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
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14. BRFAEBERRESEAENL
BERERN

BRERBNDIZE QBT BRBRER
BAREFRENBERAFARSRITER
Bz It Bt E -

AR ESREAREERN 2 WA R
Pin EF RBREAT :

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the
basic and diluted earnings per share calculations:

&
Group
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& F Earnings
FAREREAERRA A Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
JE A5 7 of the parent 1,271,654 1,252,030
%12 8 B
Number of Shares
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
T T B
Thousands Thousands
Bz 15 Shares
AREtEEREARETFZ  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T AR A 1 B used in the basic earnings per share
calculation 1,245,000 1,245,000

BE T ZFKR_ZFTNLEFE+ A
=t BLEFE AEEIEEETZ
TEREBEHETE-
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The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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15. ¥ - BERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

by -4 |
Group
BER BHRR
BF He RE EEkE ERIR fast
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR%Tn AR%®TR AR¥ET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“E-ZE+-F=1-H 31 December 2010
R-ZZZAF+-A=1+—H At31 December 2009 and
RRZZ-Z5-F—AH: at 1 January 2010:
KA Cost 1,418,475 2,079,668 46,753 90,568 153,104 3,788,568
ZHFERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (167,721) (845,196) (20,730) (46,125) - (1,079,772)
EmFE Net carrying amount 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
R-ZE-Z%—-F—H" At 1 January 2010, net of accumulated
EMREHAHERRE depreciation and impairment 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
RE Additions 30,265 281,328 12,067 20,283 170,247 514,190
WE—RMBAF (H530)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) 56,993 - - - - 56,993
ek Disposals - (1,096) @n) (807) - (2,174)
EEFERE Depreciation provided during the year (73,7729)  (185,848) (7,909) (18,497) - (286,026)
e Transfers 42,243 64,701 50 32,697 (139,691) -
B 5 A Exchange realignment (338) (406) (14) ) - (762)
RZE-%F At 31 December 2010, net of
+-A=+-8" accumulated depreciation and
BEMRZTERAE impairment 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
RZT—TF At 31 December 2010:
+-A=+-8:
KA Cost 1,557,747 2,382,048 56,077 140,240 183,660 4,319,772
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (251,602)  (988,897) (26,131) (62,125) - (1,328,755)
EEFE Net carrying amount 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
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15. Y% BWERRE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
r5E
Group
BiR R LI
BF e "E HEHE FEIR by
Furniture
Plant and Motor and  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total

ARBTT  AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'OO0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'00D

“EEAF+-A=+—H 31 December 2009

RZZZN\E+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2008 and
ER=FENF—F—R: at 1 January 2009:

KA Cost 1,094,574 1,754,003 37,762 71,098 169,391 3,126,828
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (107,657)  (689,889) (16,035) (39,567) - (853,148)

FEFE Net carrying amount 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
RZZZNE-A—H" At 1 January 2009, net of accumulated

BEMREHTERRE depreciation and impairment 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
RE Additions 19,081 298,380 10,930 10,742 313,439 652,572
WEE—RIB LA (B530)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) - - - - 20,981 20,981
HE Disposals - (1,977) (251) (320) - (2,548)
FEMERRE Depreciation provided during the year (60,067)  (160,273) (6,383) (9,134) - (235,857)
EE Transfers 304,840 34,243 - 11,624 (350,707) -
IS Exchange realignment (17) (15) - - - (32)
R=ZZBENE At 31 December 2009, net of

+=-A=+—-8" accumulated depreciation and

BEMREHTERRE impairment 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
RZZThE At 31 December 2009:

+=ZA=t+-8:

KA Cost 1,418475 2,079,668 46,753 90,568 153,104 3,788,568

ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (167,721) (845,196 (20,730) (46,125) - (1,079,772

FEFE Net carrying amount 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
R—_F—FTF+—-_A=+—H8 &&% At 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s buildings with
E R EFELD A AK180,317,0007T a net book value of approximately RMB180,317,000 (2009:

—ZEETNF: AR¥175,575,0007T) RMB175,575,000) were pledged to secure general banking
CETEFOERBIEARTIAER Y — facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

RIRTTEE 2 F24R (M4 7E26) -

RHEREBLZRARRDT - 2010 FH  {3] ———c
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16. FE{F LA ERE 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
AEE AN T HBEERIERELCEHE The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent prepaid
ERzEMNIwHELSZE EEEED land lease payments under operating leases and their carrying
T : amounts are analysed as follows:
AEE
Group
—E-E5F —ZETNF
2010 2009
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Cost:
n—H—H At 1 January 217,296 213,463
NE Additions 16,271 834
W — KB A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30)

(KF5E30) 265,343 2,999
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 498,910 217,296
EGE £ E Accumulated amortisation:

n—H—H At 1 January 11,475 7,469
FEEE Provided for the year 8,929 4,006
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 20,404 11,475
BREF(E Net book value:

R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 478,506 205,821
n—H—H At 1 January 205,821 205,994
AEEZEMN L wHEEFBMRFE K The prepaid land lease payments of the Group are situated in
B - LA ERFH AV RS o Mainland China and are held under medium lease terms.
R-BE—ZTF+_A=+—H £&H At 31 December 2010, certain prepaid land lease payments
BREFELNAARE32,135,0007T (= of the Group with a net book value of approximately
ZENF: AR ¥32,898,0007T) 2 & RMB32,135,000 (2009: RMB32,898,000) were pledged to
FrEMNLHEAEREDERIEAE TR secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
S8 —MBRITEEZER (HizE26) o 26).

———— 132 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k
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17. B EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
rEE
Group
B4 K et
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARMFR  ARMTR  ARMTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“E-ZEH54+-F=+—H 31 December 2010
R-—ZE—ZF—H—H Cost at 1 January 2010, net of
2R BAR 2E accumulated amortisation
B 3,450 118,788 122,238
NE Additions 597 - 597
FEHHEE Amortisation provided during
the year (424) (6,450) (6,874)
R-E—-ZF At 31 December 2010
+=A=+-H 3,623 112,338 115,961
R-Z-ZF+=A At 31 December 2010:
=+—8:
B 7R Cost 4,556 129,000 133,556
2T Accumulated amortisation (933) (16,662) (17,595)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,623 112,338 115,961

RMNBEREERZRBER AR - 2010 F3H 133 >S——<
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17. B EE (&)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NS
Group
B FAAK BT
Water
Software Use Right* Total
ARETTT AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—ETAF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2009
RZEZANF—H—HZ Costat1 January 2009, net of
B - B R R a4 accumulated amortisation 2,430 125,238 127,668
NE Additions 1,319 - 1,319
FEEHREE Amortisation provided during
the year (299) (6,450) (6,749)
RIZETNF At 31 December 2009
+-RB=+—"H 3,450 118,788 122,238
RZZEZENF At 31 December 2009:
+-—A=+—8:
DN Cost 3,959 129,000 132,959
g Accumulated amortisation: (509) (10,212) (10,721)
EEFE Net carrying amount 3,450 118,788 122,238

BAR A& B K md & ERAR
ZEERFNATIZHEARAK
S8 ZEmitwEKFBEERT
BERKBARNKR _ZEZENFIILZ
=HhHErERE AEEEREREH
B 3 4 AR #129,000,0007T M
RENBEEFEEBKEREE
RE20F ([AXKKE]) BHEZT—
TFE+-_A=+—R FAELEEE X
A R #53,000,0005T (=TT h 4 :
AR #52,000,00070) * M TARE
76,000,0007T B 51 A H ftb F& 1< 305 o

———— 134 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable
price for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31
December 2010, the Group has paid RMB53,000,000 (2009:
RMB52,000,000), and the remaining RMB76,000,000 was
included in Other Payables.

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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18. RMIB AT Z2RENRL THIE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

NEZERK LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(a) RHBARZERE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
KAFE
Company
—2-8F —TThF
2010 2009
AR®BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETMRRAD - #EAK A Unlisted shares, at cost 616,293 637,731
TEWBARZFEBWOT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
ARNTEER
AMALBER e NER TEEHBR
&9 EAERZES ERTRA B B  SEBE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
KT RERLHE. 30,002% 7T 100% - RERR
BREFAF

Top Always BVI, limited liability company US$30,002 100% = Investment holding

ERBMHEERAA B - 116,000,003 T 100%  RAEARERER
(TeMstil) NEBERE HEHEREER

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$116,000,000 100% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou foreign-owned enterprise products in Mainland China
Knitting”)

Bt BT TN 7,814,655% 7T 100%  RAEAEDHE
BRAT NEBERE HEHBREER
(T Esta])

Ningbo Shixing Knitwear Mainland China, wholly- US$7,814,655 100% Print and sale of knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd. foreign-owned enterprise products in Mainland China
(“Shixing Printing”)

ERSLORERRA REIARE 140,000% ¢ 100%  RAEAEDHEER
([ELEE07E]) NEBERE HEHEREER

Ningbo Lele Printing Co., Mainland China, wholly- US$140,000 100% Print and sale of knitwear

Ltd. (“Lele Printing”)

foreign-owned enterprise

B R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010
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ZE+-HA=+—H 31 December 2010

18. AIB A2 RERALTHE 18.

>——>— 1306

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

Ltd. (“Linlin Knitting”)

foreign-owned enterprise

RMNBERERZRAR AR - 2010 F3#H
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REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a RMBLARIZERE (&) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
DR EME
TR AL 3t B R ENER TEEBR
£ EAERZER BRITRA BE B KEsY
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERABBRERAA REARE 10,000,000 ¢ - 91%  RPEARHER
((BEE]) NEREL%E HESHEREER
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion ~ Mainland China, foreign US$10,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Garment Co., Ltd. equity joint venture products in Mainland China
(“Yongmian Fashion”)
BERRRNRERAT KR 5,000,000 ¢ = 91%  RABEAREZER
(MRkEE]) NERERE HESHEREER
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Mainland China, foreign US$5,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shendie equity joint venture products in Mainland China
Fashion”)
BNRER RERTH 30,000,000% 7t = 100%  ARHRHER
NEBERE HEHBREER
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of knitwear
wholly-foreign-owned products in Cambodia
enterprise
ERATHERERAR  HEXE 60,000,000% ¢ = 100%  AmEARERE
(TKF5&]) NEBECLR iﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁuu
Ningbo Dagian Knitting Co.,  Mainland China, wholly- US$60,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Ltd. (‘Dagian Knitting”) foreign-owned enterprise products in Mainland China
ERMMHEERD A LGNS 3,846,260% T = 100% R EAREHER
([Ahstil) NEBELR ISt MR m
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$3,846,260 = 100% Manufacture and processing of

knitwear products in Mainland
China
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18. RMIB AT Z2IRERL FTHIE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a RMBLARIZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ANTEER
AMRIBLER ENER TEEBR
£ EAERZER ERTRA E# B KEsY
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BERERRHERAT TN 4,000,000% T = 100%  RAEAERER
((=xEkR]) NEBERE MIStEREER
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$4,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing of
Ltd. (“Ningbo Tuton”) foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products in Mainland
China
BNEA (RB)ERAR  REARE. 10,000,003 70 = 100%  RAEAREEER
(Temz&l) NERERE MIHBREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Mainland China US$10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou foreign equity joint venture knitwear products in Mainland
Anhui’) China
BMsE (M) BRAR  REAE. 8,000,000% 70 = 100%  RPEAREER
(TeMEn) NEBERE MIHBREER
Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) ~ Mainland China US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and processing of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in Mainland
Quzhou”) enterprise China
LESERHERAT hEIARE. AK#2,000,0007C - 100% A EARE
(I5g) BERERT ZEBHNA
Shanghai Maxwin Garments ~ Mainland China sole RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Trading company in Mainland
Co., Ltd. (“Maxwin”) proprietorship company China
ATF#ELA hEIARE. AR %10,000,0007T - 100%  RAEARE
BREFLA BEREELA EHOBE R
Dagian Import & Export Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 100% Import and export of
Co., Ltd. liability company commodities in Mainland
China

RMNBEREERZRBER AR - 2010 F3H 137 =>D——<
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18. AIB AR ZBRERKLTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RKMBARZKRE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ANTEER
AMRIBLER ENER TEEBR
£ EAERZER ERTRA E# B KEsY
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BMES B 1007 7T = 100% REAEHOER
BREFAT
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 - 100% Import and export of
company commodities in Hong Kong
XE(BE)RE B 100 7T = 100%  BREAZREAEAELOER
BRAR BREFAT
Top Always (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 - 100% Investment holding and import
Investments Limited company and export of commodities in
Hong Kong
EREERERA REIARE AR #8,000,0007C = 100%  RAREAREES
BRAT BREFAF KK AR
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Mainland China, limited RMB8,000,000 = 100% Clothing detection in Mainland
Detection Co., Ltd. liability company China
BRAEETERARA REIARE 3,060,000% = 100% A EARE
([RIBEF]) NEBERE AN R
Ningbo Chuangyi Mainland China, wholly- US$3,060,000 = 100%  Pre-operating in Mainland China
Electronics Co., Ltd. foreign-owned enterprise
(“Chuangyi Electronics”)
BN AR B 5,000,0008 & - 100% fWRBAZEHRR
BREFLA
Shenzhou Japan Japan, limited liability JPY5,000,000 = 100%  Trading company in Japan
company

~———— 138 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k
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(b) HTHBATNZER

Z5+-_A=t+—8"

R-F—
THEBARZMA
#

E%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ

REREBEEEESRKNBEALE

(c) ENHEATKE

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

18. RIfBATZRERA THE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a RMBLARIZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ANTEER
AMRIBLER ENER TEEBR
£ EAERZER ERTRA E# B KEsY
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BERASREGERLA KR AK#:80,000,0007 = 100% MR EIRRE
BREELA ETREEH
Ningbo Hongma Fashion Mainland China, limited RMB80,000,000 = 100%  Retail in Mainland China
Co., Ltd. liability company
RERMNELDBRAR  hEAR AR H5,000,0007F - 100%  REEAE
BREFARF ELOE®
Anging Shenzhou Import & ~ Mainland China, limited RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd. liability Company commodities in Mainland
China
LBEREXERAA KR AR #10,000,0007 - 100%  RPEARE
BEREARTE ETNEERER
Shanghai Maxwin Industry ~ Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property management in
Co., Ltd. liability Company Mainland China

As at 31 December 2010, all loans to subsidiaries were

unsecured, interest-free and settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

(c) Amounts due to subsidiaries

FAXRRBRBAEZEMNHE
RNERIEAAR421,961,000
T(ZEZEAF: ARK
286 532,0007T) ' B AELKIF &
MBARERSR —FREE-

The amounts due to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current liabilities of RMB421,961,000 (2009:
RMB286,532,000), are unsecured,
repayable on demand or within one year.

interest-free and are

RMNBEREERZRBER AR - 2010 F3H
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31 December 2010

19. & 19. INVENTORIES
AEHE
Group
—E-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
ARET xR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R+ % Raw materials 502,453 455,985
EE S Work in progress 793,963 422,949
2UAK Finished goods 512,368 306,223
1,808,784 1,185,157
20. EWER R 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rEE VNN
Group Company
—E-EF —ETNF —E-Ef —EENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARET R AREF T ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
& i B 3R Trade receivables 897,211 607,346 299,149 152,370
BB Impairment - = - =
897,211 607,346 299,149 152,370

REBARBOHEAEABELT HeR
RE-RME-—EXNEAZEEH-

Majority of the Group’s sales are covered by letter of credit.
The remaining amounts are generally granted with credit terms
of one to six months.

——————— {4() PHEREEZBARAT -2010 £H
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20. EWEBRK (&) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuead)
REESR RBEEZERFHE CEK An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
BRERERR DT T reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
r5H b NG|
Group Company
“E-2F —"IZTNF ZB-BF C"TTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009

AR®TR ARETT AR®TR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

=EAA Within 3 months 863,011 578,874 299,149 152,370
=EAE Over 3 months 34,200 28,472 - -
897,211 607,346 299,149 152,370
R AR AR E < FE AR KR R 5 4T 40 The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
B considered to be impaired is as follows:
x5E NG
Group Company
—E-EF ZETNE “E-2fF ZTTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARETR  AREBTT ARBTR  ARETI
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

R E SR E Neither past due nor impaired 855,625 578,874 299,149 152,370
BEAOR={EA Less than 3 months past due 38,287 22,051 - =
BEB=EANLE Over 3 months past due 3,299 6,421 - =
897,211 607,346 299,149 152,370
SR8 BRSO B 2 8 W 5k I8 B3 BT M gE Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
AR CEFER- the customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
B HE R E Y FEN IR E T8 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
BEFEM ZEBEFRALEEMNRZE number of independent customers that have a good track
HREF - REBELHR AQFESR record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
A AREEEBETES KEH B of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
ZER AR AR 28Uk - W EE L impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
ZEERTIERERBE AEB W ER has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
R E BT (] KR G B AR balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
HEEBEE=ZRH- not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

RMNBEREERZRBER AR - 2010 F3H 141 >D<——<
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20. EWRRRK (&) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
R-ZEBE—FTF+_A=+—8" EUWER At 31 December 2010, the trade receivables were denominated
A TS B ETE - in the following currencies:

N
Group
—3-%% “2ThE
2010 2009
RE®  ARMEZE RE®  AREZE
Original RMB Original RVB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AREBTR Fr ARETT
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
e Us$ 88,565 586,541 54,554 372,510
AR RMB 310,670 310,670 234,836 234,836
897,211 607,346
PN/
Company
—8-%5% “EENE
2010 2009
FE®  ARWEZE FE®  ARBZE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR%®Frn Tr ARETRH
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
ETT us$ 45,170 299,149 22,315 162,370
EWEERZEEEERE RN RERE - The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate to

their fair values.

————— {40 FHERKEERARAF -2010 F1§
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21. FE{I™NIE

- BRENREMEWSE 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

15 RECEIVABLES
rE ¥ N
Group Company
—Z-2f “ETNE —E-ZF —ZITNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARETR ARETT AR%®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BN HEREE Prepayments and deposits
-BERME — Purchase of raw materials 142,770 62,160 - =
-BEME BER — Purchase of property,

B plant and equipment 5,054 9,111 - =
-BHekize - Prepaid rental and deposits 36,130 19,720 - =
—Hib - Others 523 425 - =

R Ui % T U [ S (E R R VAT refund receivable and
Recoverable 166,498 39,476 - -

YA TFHBARKS Dividends receivable from
certain subsidiaries - - 749,589 595,262
H b e WA Other receivables 31,074 19,270 81 88
382,049 150,162 749,670 595,350

PR EEDEB R HORE - L4
FRPTE S B A A B B B R KR 8

ZREWHRIRER -

BNHIE - REe REMEYGRAEZER

EREALERE-

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

receivables approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other

RMNBEREERZRBER AR - 2010 F3H 143 > <——<
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited — Annual Report 2010



B s 2% MY 5T
Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2010

2. HERREEEY 22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

bS] b NG|
Group Company
“E-%2% —EZThE ZEBE-BF C"TTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR®TRT ARETT AR¥Trn AR®Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Be RRTHER Cash and bank balances 512,528 326,708 99,113 30,105
MpEFEIR=EA 2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITHER less than three months 6,489 51,009 - =
RekBHeEED Cash and cash equivalents 519,017 377,717 99,113 30,105
REERR AREAAREFECZE At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
& RIBITH B L B AR273,339,000 of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately

T (ZEZNF: ARM217,841,000
L) c ARETAERABRAHMER -
SR - AR R R B it 2 SN EE B 1R 161 K%
HE EERMNETERT NEEE
HESBERENNETELELEZR
TEARBEBABEMER -

RITEFRBRBRITZEAERMNEILNZ
MERBAE - EHRFRA-BE=E
ATEZTRAYEEE RYAKEZ
BIRS 3R & &5k € - WIRE KRS 17 3
FRBREAN S - RITEREFAREL
BRRCEZEEBRFRIT -HE MR
EHEEYZEREEREQRAERE-

————— {44 FHERKEERERAF -2010 £
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RMB273,339,000 (2009: RMB217,841,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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23. ENERRARERE

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

RFEPR EBAERREERRE DT An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
R of the reporting period, is as follows:
N /N
Group Company
—E-2f —TTHF CZB-BF —TTHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR¥BTRT AR%Tr AR®TR ARETn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZZE AR 0 to 6 months 460,447 380,248 23,394 4,830
NERE—F 6 months to 1 year 16,745 5,302 - =
—FEMF 1 year to 2 years 6,027 411 - =
ME E Over 2 years 3,637 465 - =
486,856 386,426 23,394 4,830

ENERERETE - BNEARE
BEZHREEEEARERS-

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.
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24, HihENRERESTRE 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
AEE AAT
Group Company
—E-8% -TTNE -B-BEF -TTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBETR ARBTT ARBTR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TR Accrued expenses 222,125 215,573 154 =
Rk e IR Payable for Water Use Right
(Hi&E17) (note 17) 76,000 77,000 - -
BENE BERREZ Payables for purchase of property,
FEfI50R plant and equipment 33,862 66,297 - =
BHRETIR/ RES Guarantee deposits related to
construction projects 3,513 12,977 - -
Hfth e 5008 Other payables 32,054 11,514 - 2,505
RPES Customer deposits - 6,168 - -
Hib T8 Other taxes payable 8,497 2,072 - -
R IERFIEREZRE Dividends payable to non-
controlling interests shareholders 587 587 - =
376,638 392,188 154 2,505
H At AR IR R At SR Z BREE A The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
NAEESE - HEMENAFIET R - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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25. fTE€mIT A 25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—E-%F%
2010
rEE /N
Group Company
EE =R BE af&
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEE A 4 Forward currency contracts 107,884 - 40,095 -
—ZENF
2009
A5HE /NG|
Group Company
BE afE BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBELN Forward currency contracts 30,291 5,584 = 5,584

EMEBRANcREERAEAEMR

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the

B same as their fair values.
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25.

TTEE®MI A (#)

HEMEHN-REREHH
ZEZF+ZA=+—8H £5H
BFEETRHEEEL EBEAEER
HiEmEBIINEFHE ZE PA®-

2 i

T+

AEBERBHAZHEEHHER RS
EBENZFH AEEBRFTE T —
TERH B R IHERBE SR E 2
BEH RETSPBER - WEFEARE
27,968,000t (ZEZENF  BEAR
#58,132,0007T ) #& T 51| 75 = 51 A 4
AR

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2010, the Group held certain forward currency
contracts designated as hedges in respect of expected future
sales to overseas customers.

The terms of the forward currency contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the expected future sales.
The cash flow hedges relating to expected future sales in
the year 2010 were assessed to be highly effective. Net gain
of RMB27,968,000 (2009: losses of RMB58,132,000) were
included in the hedging reserve as follows:

—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FTAE R EE 2 A A Total fair value gains included in the
I % 4B &E hedging reserve 88,416 37,578
RN EWES 2 BEERIE Deferred tax on fair value gains (18,266) (7,877)
HHEMEEBAEZFHHE Reclassified from other comprehensive
Bk P HER income recognised in the income
statement (50,920) (104,067)
EFOAZIETER B ABzE  Deferred tax on reclassifications to
profit or loss 8,738 16,234
ReRMEE AR BEFE Net losses on cash flow hedges 27,968 (58,132)

AN REB RGN T A A E RS
EZEMINES K o R EINE S IR A
REGETERAERELE  RA
REBEBABBABELEBENR
SEFRBAE FEHPERITETA
ZANEERAKEARK71,591,000
T ERFRAEBZERANFTA(ZES
N B A RKS5,339,0000T) c A=
T—ZF+-_A=+—H AEEEE
KRR INE S #9685,000,000E 7T (=
T 1,4 : 893,500,000% 7T ) * B HA B
NF—EAZ24EA (ZZEZNF:—
AR ZE23@A) »

———— 148 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such
foreign currency contracts are settled based on the extent of
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD exchange rates
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation will
be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. Changes in
the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
gain of RMB71,591,000 were credited to the income statement
during the year (2009: loss of RMB5,339,000). As at 31
December 2010, the Group held outstanding foreign currency
contracts of US$685,000,000 (2009: US$893,500,000) with
maturity periods ranging from 1 month to 24 months (2009:
from 1 month to 23 months).
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26. FFERITRHEMEBE 26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
b3 |
Group
“E-%% —EEhE
2010 2009
ERAZ(E) A ARET T BRI (E) 38R AREFT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik Current
SHEN-BEA Bank loans - unsecured 128528 -—E--F 1,205,393 365437 Z—E-EE 150,000
2011 2010
BB -EHR Bank loans - unsecured - ®EB7T -T-ZF 177,532
A% 2 %40.80-2.00 2010
Libor+0.80-2.00
BIES-EHA Bank loans - unsecured - Epf -E-E% 49,308
FEH 8 %+2.00 2010
Hibor+2.00
BOEN-FER Bank loans - secured 128149 -Z--F 119,209 218273  ZE-ZF 118,594
2011 2010
BOEN-BHA Bank loans - secured - REkT —Z-3F 98,054
FI%FE%+1,00-2.00 2010
Libor+1.00-2.00
REBTERZ Current portion of long term REBTRAEREE C-F--F 25,285 wEBT —E-EF 26,070
BB H-FHA bank loans - secured (RMEA) +1% 2011 FAZRFE%E41.00 2010
Libor (6 months) Libor+1.00
+1%
1,349,887 619,558
Bt Non-current
EMEEABTER  Other secured bank loans WHBT -E-Zf 10,232 REPT —F--%% 36,620
REREE4+1.00 2012 RAEREZH00 —T-ZfF
Libor+1.00 Libor+1.00 2011-2012
EtAEARTER  Other secured bank loans . ZE-QE 69,500 * ZZ-Rf 39,500
2014 2014
79,732 76,120
1,429,619 695,678
* FREARBRITIEMZ=ZEAFHENK * 10% discount of benchmark interest rates for loans with periods
EAEFEITE10% of three to five years announced by People’s Bank of China
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26. it ERTREMEE (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

V|
Company
“E-%% ZZENE
2010 2009
ERAZ(E) HEA ARETR BRI (E) g e AREFT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik Current
RTES-BEHR Bank loans - unsecured 1.28%-2.26%  —E--% 318,819 wEBHT —F-%% 18,436
2011 R£HEE+150-2.00 2010
Libor+1.50-2.00
BAER-RER Bank loans - unsecured wHBT -E--F 52,082 BB -Z-%F 49,308
FEHE%+1.00 2011 FEH8%4+2.00 2010
Libor+1.00 Hibor+2.00
BAER-FHEA Bank loans - secured - - wIkT ZT-FF 88,767
AEFEX+.00 2010
Libor+1.00
371,801 156,511
r5E biN/NE|
Group Company
—E-Zf -y .3 —E-Z2f ZEENE
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR®TL ARETT AR¥TrR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W7 Analysed into:
AR TIHEEEZ Bank loans and overdrafts
RITERRER : repayable:
—FANRER Within one year or on demand 1,349,887 619,558 371,801 156,511
£ _F In the second year 10,232 26,070 - -
FEZEFERF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BIEEEMF) 69,500 50,050 - =
1,429,619 695,678 371,801 156,511

————— {50 FHEREEZBRARAT -2010 £H
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26.

| /L,\

(a)

Hitptg & (#)

AEEBZBEEREEEAARE
4,346,369,00070 (=TT N, F:
AR#3,314,097,0007T) * HF A
R #1,791,869,0007T (ZZEE N,
F: AR #¥695,678,00070) B R
HMEMKREA - RNMEER KB

FREEMERE (ZXRNE T K
%) B AR#2,554,500,0007T ( =
T NF: AR%2,618,419,000
JT) °

AEBETROEENAEE
BFREN T HHEERIE (R IR
EHRZEFEBMENBARE
212,452,000 (ZZEZ N F: A
R #208,473,0007T ) Z ¥ 18 {E K
(K sE15 % M sE16) °

AEBRARBZETRITEE

AARREEMZES 2 AFEE
Re

BreEEEARES569,500,000
T(ZZEZENLEFE: AR

189,500,0007T) 2 & FiRI1TEE
AR EIN - EEAETT B
&/%EE+{E

TFE+-_H=+—H 31 December 2010

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

(@)

The Group’s borrowing facilities amounting to

RMB4,346,369,000 (2009: RMB3,314,097,000), of

which RMB1,791,869,000 (2009: RMB695,678,

000)

had been utilised as at the end of the reporting

period. The unutilised borrowing facilities, subject to

certain conditions, was RMB2,554,500,000 (2

009:

RMB2,618,419,000) as at the end of the reporting period.

mortgages over the Group’s buildings and prepaid

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured by

land

lease payments, which had an aggregate carrying value

at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB212,452,000 (2009: RMB208,473,000) (note 15 and

note 16).

Certain bank borrowings of the Group and the Company

are guaranteed by the companies controlled by the

directors of the Company.

Except for certain bank borrowings with an aggregate
amount of RMB569,500,000 (2009: RMB189,500,

000)

which are denominated in RMB, the borrowings are in

United States dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong Kong

dollars.

B R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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27. EEBIE
EHAFARITRA SR IA L ER
R ES EEY BEEMBRS K
) — B B 2 15 SR T + B AT S B AT A
BHEERBETAEY-

27.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority.

X5 NN
Group Company
“E-%2% —ZThF ZEBE-BF C"TTHE
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR®Tn ARETT AR¥Trn AR®ET:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERFBIEEE Deferred tax assets 7,936 7,734 - 1,874
ERHEAR Deferred tax liabilities (22,885) (6,741) (6,616) =
ERTIEAETE Deferred tax liabilities, net (14,949) 993 (6,616) 1,874
RN R R AT - Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
N | NG
Group Company
—B-2% —ZTNF ZB-BF C"TTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009
AR®TRT ARETT AR¥Trn AR®Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BREFIEEE Deferred tax assets - 1,874 - 1,874
EEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities (14,949) (881) (6,616) =
ERHEAGTE Deferred tax liabilities, net (14,949) 993 (6,616) 1,874
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27. BEBH (#) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
BEEFTISTARE < B EEMT The gross movements on the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
AEE ARF
Group Company
—E-EF ZETNE “E-2fF —TENE
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARBTR  ARBTT AR®TR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

F1) At beginning of year 993 2,105 1,874 12,233
RAFERZRNGRZ Deferred tax charged to the
BRI (fE11) income statement during
the year (note 11) (6,414) (9,469) (8,490) (10,359)
RAEERERTTALZ Deferred tax credited to equity
B E during the year (9,528) 8,357 - =
FIR At end of year (14,949) 993 (6,616) 1,874
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27. BB () 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
BERBEERBERFAZEE (K The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
TR EAR G el AR A 2 A 5) the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
R balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
X5E
Group
A RRE 8
HEERS
Bz ER A E BB @t

Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable
profits  Impairment Provisions Total
ARETT AR%®TR ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZEENE—-F—H At 1 January 2009 12,233 1,209 3,761 17,203
WARFERZER (M), Deferred tax (charged)/
FTAZERTIE credited to the income
statement during the year (10,359) 120 770 (9,469)
RZZEZNE At 31 December 2009
+-R=1—"H 1,874 1,329 4,531 7,734
WARFEEZER (1K), Deferred tax (charged)/
FAZERTIE credited to the income
statement during the year (1,874) (1,329) 3,405 202
R=Z-%F At 31 December 2010
+=-A=+-H - - 7,936 7,936
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27. IEEBLH () 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(a) EZEHEBEEE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (continued)
PN
Company
A A 3K 8
H#&EERS
FMEzER
Loss available
for offsetting against
future taxable profits
ARBTT
RMB’000
RZZEZNF—-H—H At 1 January 2009 12,233
MARFEFEERAKRNG ZELEFE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (10,359)
RZZEZNF+_A=+—H2Z Gross deferred tax assets
BETIBEERE at 31 December 2009 1,874
RAFEERRMBR ZELFIE Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (1,874)
RZZFE—ZEF+ZA=+—H2z Gross deferred tax assets
BEMIBEERE at 31 December 2010 -
R_E—ZFF+-_F=+—H 'K The Group has deductable temporary differences of
SEABAHNNREREZFOARYE approximately RMB67,072,000 as at 31 December 2010.
67,072,0007T ° AN B W R 5tk & Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
AHBEREEREREEHRIES of these deductable temporary differences and it is not
E - BRAD KRR ERTAE considered probable that taxable profits will be available
VA i 55 85 P] H0 0 B Bp = RE o against which the deductable temporary differences can
be utilised.
R B A 2 AR 3 AT R R 4 8E R The tax losses arising in Mainland China will expire in one
R ERRFE 2 M BEAGR to five years for offsetting against future taxable profit.
—ZERFFH-
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27. IEERIE (&)
(b) BEFEEE

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

TEE
Group
HBeRg FHHEH
¥ E TETR wEt
Non-hedging
Cash flow currency
hedges derivatives Total
AREBTTT ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AZZTTNF—H—H At1 January 2009 15,098 - 15,098
MAFEREZRT A Z  Deferred tax credited to equity
IR IE TR IE during the year (8,357) = (8,357)
RZEZNF At 31 December 2009
+ZA=+—8 6,741 - 6,741
RAFEE B KRIERZ  Deferred tax charged to
IR AE T 18 the income statement
during the year - 6,616 6,616
MRAFE#Z NP2  Deferred tax charged to
IEREF IR equity during the year 9,528 = 9,528
R-E—ZF At 31 December 2010
+=HA=+—H 16,269 6,616 22,885
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27. IEEBLH () 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) EZEHEBEEE (Z) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
PN
Company
FHIPEWITETR
Non-hedging
currency derivatives
ARBTT
RMB’000
RZZEZNF—H—H At 1 January 2009 =
EAﬂSir?ﬁ HRIG ZIELEFIE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year -
RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H2Z Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31
EIETIE BEATE December 2009 =
RAFEEDRMNBR ZELFIE Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year 6,616
MRZZE—ZF+=A=+—HZ Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31
BEM IR B EER December 2010 6,616
REFHCEMSHE RZZT Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
NF—H—H K Ig/)fi%/ withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
INMEE E 2 IR EZBBBKI0%TE N investors from the PRC effective from 1 January 2008.
o i B B2 )5 NS B AT Rl A A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
EEATETH AR EAREK L tax arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
TE I °§‘7ﬁ$%lﬁﬁ§ E A of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
KR5% BBHAR _TT)N\F rate is 5%. On 22 February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1
—HA=Z+NH ﬁﬁﬁfﬁz 8 4 (2008) was promulgated by the tax authorities to specify that
FIRFTHBZZZELF T+ A dividends declared and remitted out of the PRC from the
=T —HIENRSEMNERE IR retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 are exempted
FEHFRZRESEREHMNIE from the withholding tax.
B
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27. IEERIE (&)

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b) EZEHEBEEE (Z) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
RZE-—TF+_A=+—H # At 31 December 2010, no deferred tax has been
fEh AN B B PP B K Bl N7 2 Y BB recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
NAEBREMH 2 KE LD ZF on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
ZEMTEMHmEREERIE - E taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
ERE ZEWB R RIRNA R K China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
DIKZEBHZ ALK R that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
T—Z2FF+_A=+—H HHH in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
RNEEM B R A 2 RERIEERIE temporary differences associated with investments in
BECRECEREZEBRARAR subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
AR #2,797,488,000t (Z & F liabilities have not been recognised totaled approximately
L&+ AR #1,730,345,0007T) ° RMB2,797,488,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009:

RMB1,730,345,000).
AN B A E IR R A IR B A There are no income tax consequences attaching
BREBR- to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
28. A 28. SHARE CAPITAL
13 “Z2-%% ZETNF
Shares 2010 2009
TEx AR%¥Tn THLT ARET:T
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
AT Authorised:
3,000,000,000 f&% 3,000,000,000 (2009:
(ZZEZNE: 3,000,000,000) ordinary
3,000,000,0008% ) &R @ shares of HK$0.10 each
B0.108 w2 LBk 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
BRETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,245,000,000/% 1,245,000,000 (2009:
(ZEENF: 1,245,000,000) ordinary
1,245,000,0008% ) & Bx shares of HK$0.10 each
{H0.10B T 2 & B 124,500 129,717 124,500 129,717
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29. & &

(a)

FEE

AEERBMEEBEFEZHE
CRLEEHE 2INTHRE
KSR EBEE K-

() ZEBSABE ([ZZEE
nEZ])
RIE A B A BE K& B R BE
MEARZHEGERZME
BEHRERENERRARKE
RBPBEAREFTRANEE 2
BrAi 18 T E10% B A EEE
BHAES BEEE@EAE
©E P B RREN B A R
it B A8 250% % LE © & 99 &
TE B AR S 7] ARG 04K
RRA  EERE ZEREE
PMELOREMAR AR 225% °

(i) EZKEERE
PEE 34,8 B {5 PR 1 AT 8% R 42
HBINB AR 2 HBHREK
EECZELEZ®R-

29. RESERVES

(a)

Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73

of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland China
Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are
each required to allocate 10% of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
generally accepted accounting principles, to the
SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part
of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-
up capital, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

B R S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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29. s (#) 29. RESERVES (continuea)
(b) &2H (b) Company
EZRD B
Mz ROREERE  RARE #E REEN  KHRE #st
Share Exchange Proposed
premium Capital ~ fluctuation Retained final
Note account surplus reserve profits dividend Total

ARBTT ARETR AREBTT ARMTR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R=EZHhE-F—H At 1 January 2009 762,499 727,430 (276,045) 175,236 219,593 1,608,713
FEZAKALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (859 415738 - 42879
“2E\ESERSMRE  Final 2008 dividend declared - - - - (219593 (219,599)
“EENEHBERSMRE  Proposed final 2009 dividend 13 - - - (383678 383678 -
i 3 At 31 December 2009
+-A=+-H 762,499 727,430 (278,904) 207,296 383,678 1,801,999
FE2AKALE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = (61,184) 454,773 = 393,589
“EZNEERABRE  Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - (383,678)  (383,679)
“Z-ZFERERAMRE  Proposed final 2010 dividend 13 - = - (381,379) 381,373 -
R=B-%% At 31 December 2010
+ZA=1+-H 762,499 721,430 (340,088) 280,696 381,373 1,811,910
30. WiE—RME A A 30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
RZE—ZEFRA ASERBILE= In May 2010, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
T ESHTIRETEERAR ([ £ of Shanghai Qungong Investment Management Co., Ltd
R ]) 100% R Atz RIR R E (“Shanghai Qungong”) from an independent third party at
B ARM297,000,0007T ° HEETHS a total cash consideration of RMB297,000,000. Shanghai
— R B B £ A R % Qungong owns a piece of land located in Shanghai, China
Tt EHREF - WEIE-—BENE and several buildings located on the land. The sole purpose
WHEZ T RIEFEHAREEERE LG of the acquisition was to acquire the land and buildings to
BEMZEBRRL HAREWT RS develop the Group's Shanghai-based management center. As
B2 EE BWEBEXHARINIEWEE it does not meet the definition of a business, this transaction is
EEo accounted for as an acquisition of assets.
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30. WEE—RMEB LT (&) 30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
REE B8R T 2 IRERES KRN The allocation of acquisition consideration of Shanghai
™ Qungong as at the date of acquisition was:

AEWERE
Allocation of
acquisition
consideration
Bt &% ARBTT
Note RMB’000
B EEFE: Net assets acquired:
g Property, plant and equipment 15 56,993
A B E R IR Prepaid land lease payments 16 265,343
JE W BR 5K Trade receivables 937
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,035
H fth F& 5 IA Other payables (19,508)
STERITRHEMEER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (18,800)
297,000
AER & 2t Satisified by cash 297,000
BREWE—ZRMNBRAR R REESE An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
BYRLDFEZOMAOT respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
ARBTT
RMB’'000
XHRERE Cash consideration paid (297,000)
BEMRE MIRITE Cash and bank balances acquired 12,035
BRAKE—ZXHEAT ZIEE K  Net cash outflow of cash and
ReFEYRLFE cash equivalents in respect of
the acquisition of a subsidiary 284,965
BWEER EERTZEEHAER From the date of the acquisition, Shanghai Qungong’s results
HE-_E—ZE+_-_A=1+—HIEE have had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
ZEAWAKF B EEATE- revenue or profit for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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3. ZEHE s z2EemM T A 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REESHR SERES T AZREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
R instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EREE Financial assets

rE
Group
—E-EF —ETNF
2010 2009
BEXR ER K
FEW K 1E J& UK SR IR
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
ARET R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
PTESMI A Derivative financial instruments 107,884 30,291
H {th i 3R IB Other receivables 31,074 78,466
JiE g BR 3R Trade receivables 897,211 607,346
ViR EBE=EA 2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITFER over three months 125,026 37,827
ReRBASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 519,017 377,717
1,680,212 1,131,647
SREE Financial liabilities
r5E
Group
—E-%§ “TENE
2010 2009
REHERE g Sl
BiEEEY tEZ RKEBEL e
SHaRE SHER @t SRAE cRaE @it
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities  liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for ~ amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total

ARMTR  AR%TR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ERETREE Trade and bills payables - 486,856 486,856 = 386,426 386,426

ERBEEALTE Amounts due to related parties - 2,257 2,257 - 2,058 2,058

fTE¢BIE Derivative financial instruments - - - 5,584 - 5,584
FRRIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings - 1420619 1,429,619 - 619,558 619,558

Hi R R Other payables - 146,016 146,016 = 174,543 174,543

- 2,064,748 2,064,748 5584 1,182,585 1,188,169
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1. RENESZ2EMI A (&) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
EMEE Financial assets
AAF
Company
—E-BF —ZTTAF
2010 2009
BERR B R
PE W R 1B FE W5k IE
Loans Loans
and and
receivables receivables
ARBTR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
E2mIT A Derivative financial instruments 40,095 =
E h fE k18 Other receivables 749,670 595,262
JiE L BR 3R Trade receivables 299,149 152,370
Re kB eFEY Cash and cash equivalents 99,113 30,105
1,188,027 777,737
SRAE Financial liabilities
b
Company
“E-Bf ZZTNE
2010 2009
REHERA REERA
BiFEE tEZ REEEL HEZ
cHEaE SREE @t SREE CREE @it
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for ~ amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total

ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETI ARETR ARETX
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000

S EGE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 421,961 421,961 - 286,532 286,532

NS ES Trade and bills payables - 23,394 23,394 - 4,830 4,830

fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - 5,584 - 5,584
STRRIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings - 371,801 371,801 - 156,511 156,511

HiEATE Other payables - - - = 2,505 2,505

- 817,156 817,156 5,584 450,378 455,962
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32. AREER
FEERARRZEMIAREERA

32. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

AET Company’s financial instruments are as follows:
REE Group
REE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E-2F —TTHF CZB-ZF C—TITNE
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTRT AR®TE AR%®TR AR®ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SHEE Financial assets
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 107,884 30,291 107,884 30,291
H b e 50E Other receivables 31,074 78,466 31,074 78,466
JE Wi AR 3R Trade receivables 897,211 607,346 897,211 607,346
MisGErHn="A2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITER over three months 125,026 37,827 125,026 37,827
ReRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 519,017 377,717 519,017 377,717
SRAE Financial liabilities
EBRNEREEE Trade and bills payables 486,856 386,426 486,856 386,426
[EFRIE A L5008 Amounts due to related parties 2,257 2,058 2,257 2,058
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 5,584 - 5,584
FTERAREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 1,429,619 619,558 1,425,969 618,346
H b eI 508 Other payables 146,016 174,543 146,016 174,543
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32. DREE& (&) 32. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
o

b /N Company
REE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E-2F —TTHF CZB-ZF C—TITNE
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTRT AR®TE AR%®TR AR®ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SHEE Financial assets
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 40,095 = 40,095 =
H b e W50E Other receivables 749,670 595,262 749,670 595,262
JE Wi B 3R Trade receivables 299,149 152,370 299,149 152,370
ReRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 99,113 30,105 99,113 30,105
SRAE Financial liabilities
ERTHTB A A Amounts due to subsidiaries 421,961 286,532 421,961 286,532
ERERIEE Trade and bills payables 23,394 4,830 23,394 4,830
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 5,584 - 5,584
FTERAREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 371,801 156,511 371,602 156,426
Hib eI 508 Other payables - 2,505 - 2,505

CRMEENBBEZANBUZIARE The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included
FERZ 575 (MIERBIBELEIEES)E A
RGTHARGEBAK N FER

SR IAREEARE:

at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

FEHRBASRBESEEY EEHF Cash and cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged

R BVERER 47 ~ R AR 3R~ A AR X %
SR FABNREAE REREMBER
RAZETREE S ARMEBMTIEAR
T REZeRMEE  BUY RN
RAFEANENRRERATRASFT
BEREHAIES wEAREERE -

deposits, trade receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, and an amount
due to the ultimate holding company approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

RMERRERRERAR 2010 FH 4 Q5 ———
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32.

AREREH &)

BRI 22 JEENIEE D - 5t B IRIT R
Hib s > A n@E Ty EmaeRELE
o EERBRRS TSN TARE
ARAZHESRERRTERESTE
Mt -aEnEL > AEBPARME
REBAC AT IR E A 2 RS TS R
=

AREBEZEHFATLTESH TR
TEBRAAMAGEFTRZ S BEE -
TEERTRE (BRENEBSORA
Kig8) R A EERREEREHRA
Bz BEXMTE (RBREHE) -
ZERAMASETR 2MS A BRE
ABR(BREREDZEEER INEA
HIMEMERR R R EHEH
BHRRNEEHZREEREEAAER
G

~———— 166 MBI EEZERERAF - 2010 F3k

32. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of pledged deposits,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments on similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair value of the
liability portion of the convertible bonds is estimated using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar convertible bond.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs including
the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts
of forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps are the
same as their fair values.
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32. AREEHR &) 32. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
RZE—ZEF+H=+T—H &mE As at 31 December 2010, the marked to market value of the
Ti‘%‘ifgz PTEBEMRTIMBRITET ALY derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment

EHRBREGEZEEFEARE -HA attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
1*Eﬂ e BEE IR EBE REER T in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
ATEREZEAANEBRRAZHEM T A effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge
ZE R AW EE RN E - relationship and other financial instruments recognised at fair

value.
ARERE Fair value hierarchy
K%ﬁﬁﬁ—l—’ﬂﬁ&%?zm&ﬁ A The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
TEZRARE: disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
—&: EREBEESEGEREET Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices
BZHBE (REHAB)FTEZ (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
AE liabilities
FEH: REREHBAANBEBEEATE Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques
ZE A\EBUR R B ok B for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
BRESZHMERDLFEZ the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
NI or indirectly
F=8: RSB AABEEATE Level 3:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques
Z AR A BRI FE ] B R for which any inputs which have a significant
58 (T B R A2 effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
BIZHEBERBGFEZ AR observable market data (unobservable inputs)
{El
BARBEFNEZEE: Assets measured at fair value:
AEE Group
R-B-FF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2010
E-& et 1} E=H st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETR ARETR AR¥TT AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fTHEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 107,884 - - 107,884

107,884 - - 107,884

R RERRERAR 2010 FH 437 ——
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32.

33.

AREREH &)
ANAREEBR(F)
R-E—TF+-HA=+—H £X£H
TEAEMEAREHEZCREE-

>

=

HE_—_2—ZF+_A=+—HIF
B BMEAABEFERNE—REE &

2R NES =z Bk e
% o
BERREEEEREEK

BOTETES AEBZTESRMTA
BREBITERRRSAREBER %
FeRMTATIZEEERASEHEESS
EET AKETAZREMERE
ENAE PIMEEREEEL 2R
R K K FE AN R K

AEFBNMETTATIAER G TE81EF
REEBSO BEMAEEASEEE
EEZEERE-

AEESRIAELAZTERRANE
Bk sNERR EERRRERBES
J—UﬁﬁL’ EeEHLRBERRAEE £
aFIAR R B BBORR T Xt o &
SEBEBTETAZ ST BRENUH
KM EE2.4 -

———— 18 HHEBRKEZBRAFRAF - 2010 5

32.

33.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short-term time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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33. IEREEEERBE 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

RN
AEEREHMISHNEEFRMEEHR
AEEFERPEHRRETAR-

TRINTRBEHR  EAEEME
REZERT  REBRB A AE KA
SEREHNESENRED  HRE
DT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonable possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

TEE
Group
BB Al
8/ FEgmS EzmsEmS
THREH (H2) (B2)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
decrease in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity

ARBTTT ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-2F 2010
INF &= EHR If interest rate increases +50 (399) (399)
AR TR If interest rate decreases -50 399 399
—TTNF 2009
W = EFR If interest rate increases +50 (381) (381)
T E R If interest rate decreases -50 381 381

S0 EE L B

AEEEHRZZFEERR % %5 R R R

B#HE - AKEN79% (ZTTNF:

82% ) $H & A TTAHE » T 3F PAHETT 35

EZREBEMUAREHE - AEEBEX
EREBMEMARPEERLD B

FRIEHI B R H S H 2 SME R -

BASEZ K BREMIAR 2 HfE
EEEHRITAETAZFH UESHEAK
SR AR

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales. Approximately 79% (2009: 82%) of
the Group’s sales were denominated in US$ other than RMB
of the operating units making the sale. The Group requires
the major operating unit to use forward currency contracts to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures on the forecast future
sales.

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

MR RERRERAR 2010 FH 430 —a——au
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33. iEREEEERBEE 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

SER B ()
R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H0 X&£H
A 8 (620,000,000 T (—ZZEZE A
4 :928,000,000% L) 2 R EK A
4 EEREEBARAEINEFHEE
ZH AR

AN REBINEI T DA IR
EZEAMINE S L) ZFINES IR A
RENEZETEXRHAERELAE R
EAEEEEANEBRAEBELXRBER
RBGEFMBAE - R_E—FTF+=
A=+—HB X&EEFERTFRINGEG
4 #1685,000,000E L (ZZE T JLF ¢
893,500,000% 7T ) ' HIEAA N F—E A
Z24E A (ZZFEZNF : — & A 223
A)e

TRFURA RS B A 8
TR 2GR T - A % B B B A R
oM TE R A I2 W AL B B) 2 BB A7
(R EEEER A S AR EREH
%) o

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2010, the Group held forward currency
contracts of US$620,000,000 (2009: US$928,000,000)
designated as hedges in respect of expected future sales to
overseas customers.

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such
foreign currency contracts are settled based on the extent of
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD exchange rates
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation
will be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. As at 31
December 2010, the Group held outstanding foreign currency
contracts of US$685,000,000 (2009: US$893,500,000) with
periods ranging from 1 month to 24 months (2009: from 1
month to 23 months).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

ShEfE 3 HRRB AT
L#H T FMEzE
Increase/
decrease in Effect
foreign on profit
currency rate before tax
% ARBTT
% RMB’000
—E-EF 2010
i AR HETTHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (266,138)
MARBHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 266,138
—ETAF 2009
i AR H T HE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (249,439)
i AR L ETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 249,439
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33. IEREEEERBE 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

EERRE
AEBERNAREBRFZF=TE
TRB-BAKEZBER  FiAREE
EMETRIZER LEAKBEERZ
BEiEF I AEREFEERBUHK
Higs BASEERS ZERRRL A
EXR-HRWIFARBEEEM 2T
ERFEZRS BIFREEZHRE
BERRME BAAEETGRTEER
Ho

ERASEEMEREE (BRATR
RaEFEY  HMRUEGRIENRETIT
AETR)EAZEERR AEEESZ
EERBKRB RS H T HERHKIA - &
¥REEARAENZETAZEREE.

HRAEERENGAEERFZE=
FEORS ARBEERG -FES
REBRER,/ RZHEFEE -NRE
HR AEEREETEESTERRK -
AREEI3% (ZTEENF:9%) R
85% (ZZETNF :71% ) BRI D 7B
REAAEBZEARFRAKREF H
RAEEZETERFHRBEAERES
Mgz A BEFEEYRPELH
FE AEBNEZZEEETEE
SRR -

FRAKEREEBEER 2EERR
#—HEBIE R HRRME20H

==

5% o

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
certain derivative instruments the Group’s exposure to credit
risk, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 13% (2009: 9%)
and 85% (2009: 71%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the Group
are all companies with world-famous brand, and long-term
business relationship has been established by both parties,
certain concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the
Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.
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33. BiEMEREBERBXR 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBESER Liquidity risk
AEEFERBRADESTE T AL The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
EoRmEkR BEHEIAZERESRT recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
ARemEE (flarEKiRz) 2258 of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
AUARKEXEBZETHEERE receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
K& R R E T 4 &AL IR S 3RET The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
EAKEesRmARBZYBHABRNA the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
™ undiscounted payments, was as follows:

F5@
Group
ZB-%F%
2010
~MIRE
RER  HRAER SRT=A -ERME MERL @it
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARBTR  ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

STERIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings - 446,812 903,075 10,232 69,500 1,429,619
EREFREE Trade and bills payables 385,989 91,203 6,027 3,637 - 486,356
Hih R Other payables 146,016 - - - - 146,016
R BEALHE Amounts due to related parties - 2,257 - - - 2,257
fTHERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -

532,005 540,272 909,102 13,869 69,500 2,064,748
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33. ¥EREEREREE

(%)

RBEERER (&)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

r5E
Group
ZZThE
2009
~NERE
RER  SRAEA SRTZfER —ERE REN £ &5t
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT AREFT AREFr AR®Tn ARETT ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SERTRAMES Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 504,669 114,889 26,070 50,050 695,678
ERERRER Trade and bills payables - 380,248 5,302 411 465 386,426
E At R Other payables 174,543 - - - - 174,543
JEFTEEA LA Amounts due to related parties - 2,058 - - - 2,058
fTESRMIE Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - - - - 5,584
180,127 886,975 120,191 26,481 50,515 1,264,289
NG|
Company
ZB-%F
2010
~ERE
REX  ORAEA SRT-EA -EWE RENE @t
6 to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
AR¥TR ARETn AR%Tn AR%®Tn AR%Tn ARETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SRRIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 371,801 - - - 371,801
EREFRER Trade and bills payables - 23,394 - - - 23,304
ERWERFZE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 421,961 - - - 421,961
- 817,156 - - - 817,156

B S E AR A R AR - 2010 F3
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33.
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BEEABREEBERBE
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RBESAR ()

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Liquidity risk (continued)

NG|
Company
—EENEF
2009
~NERE
REX  SRAEA SRTZEA —EME RENE @it
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT AREFT AREFr AR®Tn ARETT ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SERTRAMES Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 166,511 - - - 156,511
ERNEFREE Trade and bills payables - 4,830 - - - 4,830
FERAHBARTE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 286,532 - - - 286,532
fTESBIR Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - - - - 5,584
5,584 447,873 - - - 453,457
BERER Capital management

AEBEAEEZ T ZEARAERGERN
SERBEEZRNRERRIFERL
T PXFHEEH RSB RFERKE
E-

AEEBRBELEERASHERE RAE
HEARERE RERFIFARERERS
AEEAEARMBRIRMS Z/E - M
BRAEBEEANBTTR -BE_T—
TF+ZA=+—HEZZEZENF+=
A=T—HLEFE BREEELNE
Z BRREFTEES-

RMNBERERZRAR AR - 2010 F3#H

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are

to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes

adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made

in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December

2009.
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33. MEEMEEEERBKEK 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
EXRER (5&7) Capital management (continued)
REBERBEAAGBL X (BERFE The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
REREHEMERFR)EEER-E net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
BFRBERBAERITRAMEE - ER includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
R R EE - B e RIB R ER KB and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
ANERBEEANTHIE BRe NS to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
EEBY - BEXRBESARHESE ABGE includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent less
@ REREE RN EHRR EXEE the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at the ends of the
tEE R reporting periods were as follows:
rEH
Group
—E-ZF —TTNAF
2010 2009
ARET ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SFRBTREMEES Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 1,429,619 695,678
ETERR R RE Trade and bills payables 486,856 386,426
T8 UK BR 3k Advance from customers 53,060 =
E b e FOB R EFFIE  Other payables and accruals 376,638 392,188
FE A A T3R8 Amounts due to related parties 2,257 2,058
BBHERBEEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (519,017) (377,717)
B F & Net debt 1,829,413 1,098,633
AR AE(REE Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,799,532 3,882,495
Hm A Hedging reserve (51,518) (23,550)
KB E AN B Total adjusted capital 4,748,014 3,858,945
BEARREBFH Capital and net debt 6,577,427 4,957,578
BREELX Gearing ratio 28% 22%
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2010

34. &iE 34. COMMITMENTS
(a) REHERIE (a) Operating lease commitments
AEBIRBE AT RECERELH The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
HEEETHAZMEREE under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RZE—ZFF+_A=+—H 'K At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future
SEREBETIRELEHEREN aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
IARKEHESHBBOAT cancellable operating leases as follows:
AEE
Group
—E-=F —ETAF
2010 2009
ARBTx ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 14,945 20,839
FE_EFERF In the second to fifth years,
(RREERMF) inclusive 41,143 42,135
hF1#& After five years 23,565 27,333
79,653 90,307
(b) EXREE (b) Capital commitments
Group
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
ARE TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEI#ERBE: Contracted, but not provided for:
BERMNIHHEESHIEIAR  Acquisition of prepaid land lease
Y- WE R payments and property, plant and
equipment 31,898 93,118
FEY - BB & Construction of property, plant and
equipment 48,687 101,931
80,585 195,049
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—ZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2010

34.

35.

36.

AIE e

(c) RAFEREHIESH
RZZE—ZTF+A=+—HB" 'K
SERBRARTERBINEEL:
AR—EAAZE24@EAR(ZZTZE
NE:—@AZE23@AMRN)EE
620,000,000 7T (=TT N5
928,000,000 7t ) LA EL 49 A
R #4,148,951,0000 (ZEF N
F: ) AR%6,275,873,0007T) °

HREE
RIBEIR - AEB AR AR
BEARRAME-

BEALRS

HWE— D BRENERIEEEN S —7
IHEMBEREERRTEEATE
N RIETRBEERE-MEESR
Rl — 7 6l - TR B RRE -

(@) ZAEEXEEBEABZHE

34.

35.

36.

COMMITMENTS (continuead)

(c) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had commitments in
respect of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
to sell US$620,000,000 (2009: US$928,000,000) for
approximately RMB4,148,951,000 (2009: approximately
RMB6,275,873,000) within periods ranging from 1 month
to 24 months (2009: from 1 month to 23 months).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the

Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control.

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

AEE

Group
—2-%F —TTNF
2010 2009
AR¥ TR ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEEREREREAEME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 8,622 57,406

ERESHES2E—FHFBIARN
BT MR MIES

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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36. BEALTRS (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(b) EEREALTZRS (b) Transactions with related parties
fFE Continuing
BRAMBEHRESBFMZZHIN
REBREN G HEEEANTHT
TAERRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

K&
Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
AR®BT R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEFENEEERARF  Lease of property, plant and
(TEEMEZ]) equipment from Ningbo Shenzhou
HEWE BE &K HE Properties Co., Ltd
(“Shenzhou Properties”) * 7,262 7,262
KiEEFARRRAE Purchase of steam supply from
AR Ningbo Mingyao Environmental
([EHREAHRA]) * Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (‘Mingyao
HEZER Electric Company”) ** 38,625 32,321
B BN KB & A Processing services provided by
BRAA Ningbo Shenzhou Dagang Knitwear
(TERMNARE]) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Dagang”) *
REZ NI RS 9,181 11,393
FABESRERDEMm Purchase of packing materials from
AR Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
(lEmBERAR]) > Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi
KiEBRYE Packaging Company”) *** 29,741 27,030
* BMNEXERBRMNREHRARAR— * Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Dagang are controlled

BITE RS

by one of the Company’s executive directors.

x> HRE N RARIAARRA B —B]MAIT b Mingyao Electric Company is 48% owned by one of the
EFHEE48%ER Company’s executive directors.
o EFEEEQARRAANAREP— **  Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of

BRHITEE ZHBIEG - one of the Company’s executive directors.
MEEALTZRERBENRE
EEARMEFZERFPREH#HZA
B R AGRTRHETT

The purchases and lease from the related parties were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered by the related companies to their major
customers.
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—ZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 31 December 2010

36. BEALTRS (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
(c) EEBIEANTZ&8 (c) Outstanding balances with related parties
AEEHEBEBEBALTAUTEKXR The Group had the following significant balances with its
ek related parties:
rEE
Group
—E-ZF ZEThF
2010 2009
AREBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAS BAE A T FKIB Amounts due to related parties
—HZE5HHE: - Trade related:
EHBEmMmA A Huaxi Packaging Company 2,257 2,058
2,257 2,058
37. #LEM KK 37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
EEeR T ——F =A==+ N\BH#E The financial statements were approved and authorised for
3 5 ) B B B R R o issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2011.
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Financial Information Summary
(BREEFTAIN - FIESERARETT)

AEERBEAMBHREMBEEFRAER
EFBFEZEAMEEAREE BER
DR EREEEHINMT

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+t-A=+-BLEE R+t=A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-FF —ZTTNEFE —ZTTN\F —TTLF —TTRF
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
AREBTRT ARETT ARETRE ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
KA Revenue 6,719,172 6,093,485 4,822,596 3,655,613 2,979,530
BB AR Finance costs (35,837) (25,393) (51,417) (34,279) (15,081)
IR RN Profit before income tax 1,624,597 1,473,553 757,420 401,736 409,247
FTEHHEX Income tax expense (351,952) (220,439) 56,968 6,352 (19,001)
F E Profit for the year 1,272,645 1,253,114 700,452 408,088 390,246
AR AT : Attributable to:
BREREREA Equity holders of
the parent 1,271,654 1,252,030 699,380 406,882 389,031
FEPE )1 o Non-controlling Interests 991 1,084 1,072 1,206 1,215
1,272,645 1,253,114 700,452 408,088 390,246
EE -BER Assets, Liabilities and
DERRER Minority Interests
BEE Total assets 7,425,455 5427229 4,321,251 3,903,920 2,793,706
BEE Total liabilities (2,612,184)  (1,531,533)  (1,448,278)  (1,423,288) (719,390)
FEPE I 1 2 Non-controlling Interests (13,739) (13,201) (12,586) (11,514) (12,514)
4,799,532 3,882,495 2,860,387 2,469,118 2,061,802
fizE: AEEBEEZE_TZNFR_ZFT—ZFF+= Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years

A=+—HALMEFESFZHREEE "
UER—_ZEFNFRER_ZE—ZFF+=A
=t+—HAZHGEAEE BERIFEZG RS

ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 and the consolidated assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and 2010 are those set out on pages 69 to 179 of

TR B 53R R BE6OB = 1798 ©

——— 180 MBI EEEZERERAF - 2010 F3

the financial statements.
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